
 
 

BOARD 
OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 

January 19th, 2015 
 

6:00 PM Closed Session 
7:00 PM - Regular Meeting 

 
Historic Courtroom 

Courthouse Complex 

Page 1 of 130



 

Agenda   -  Camden County Board of Commissioners January 19th, 2016 

  Page 1 of 3 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their meeting and 
all items found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may also, in their absolute 
discretion, consider matters not shown on this agenda. 
 

Please turn Cell Phone ringers off during the meeting. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting 
January 19, 2016 

6:00 P.M. - Closed Session 
7:00 P.M. - Regular Meeting 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 
Camden, North Carolina 

 
 
6:00 P.M. Call to Order - Chairman P. Michael McLain 
 
 Closed Session 
  

A. Pursuant to G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3) - Consultation with Attorney to discuss 
Contract Negotiations 

 
 B. Pursuant to G.S. 143-318.11(a)(6) – Personnel 

 
7:00 P.M. Welcome 
 
 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance – Tom White 
 
ITEM 1. Public Comments 
 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of 
comments may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other 
issues. 

 
ITEM 2. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 
 
ITEM 3 Presentations 
 

A. Agriculture Extension Agent ........................................................................ (Pg. 5) 

B. COA Brand Presentation .............................................................................. (Pg. 6) 

C. Mid-Year Budget Review ........................................................................ (Pg. 7-19) 

 
 
ITEM 4. Old Business (For discussion and possible action) 

 
A. Playground Equipment Design  ............................................................. (Pg. 20-25) 

B. Saturday Night Open Gym Program Restructuring ............................... (Pg. 26-27) 

C. Camden Youth Football Seeking Recognized Status ............................ (Pg. 28-36) 

D. 911 Central Communications Drive Testing and Assessment ...... (Pg. 37-41) 

Page 2 of 130



 

Agenda   -  Camden County Board of Commissioners January 19th, 2016 

  Page 2 of 3 

 
 

ITEM 5. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 
 
A. Monthly Tax Report – November 2015 ................................................. (Pg. 42-49) 

B. CCPL Logo Contest Finalists ................................................................ (Pg. 50-51) 

C. CCPL's Hours of Operation ................................................................... (Pg. 52-64) 

 D. Alternative Sports Fields ....................................................................... (Pg. 65-74) 

 
ITEM 6. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action) 

 
A. Board Vacancies .................................................................................... (Pg. 75-76) 

 
ITEM 7. Consent Agenda (All items listed below are routine and will be approved by one 

motion. Separate discussion of an item(s) will be held by request of a member of the 
Board.) 
 
A. Draft Minutes – November 2nd, 2015  .................................................. (Pg. 77-102) 

B. Tax Refunds, Pickups, & Releases   .................................................. (Pg. 103-105) 

C. Tax Authorization to Collect (March Renewals)  .............................. (Pg. 106-107) 

D. Surplus Property - Sheriff .................................................................. (Pg. 108-109) 

ITEM 8. Commissioner's Report (For discussion and possible action) 
 

ITEM 9. County Manager's Report (For discussion and possible action) 
 

 
Recess Commissioner's Meeting 
 
 

SOUTH CAMDEN WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
1. Call to Order 

2. Public Comments 

3. Consideration of Agenda 

4. Consent Agenda 

A. Draft Minutes – November 2, 2015  .................................................. (Pg. 110-113) 

B. Monthly Report – December 2015 .................................................... (Pg. 114-115) 

5. Other Matters (For Discussion and possible action.) 

6. Adjourn 

 
 
 
Reconvene Commissioner’s Meeting 
 

Page 3 of 130



 

Agenda   -  Camden County Board of Commissioners January 19th, 2016 

  Page 3 of 3 

 
 
ITEM 10. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies   ......................... (Pg. 116-130) 

 
A. Monthly Report – Sheriff .......................................................................... (Pg. 117) 

B. County & Municipality Fees ..................................................................... (Pg. 118) 

C. Monthly Report – Register of Deeds ................................................. (Pg. 119-120) 

D. Sales Tax Revenue .................................................................................... (Pg. 121) 

E. Hyde County Resolution  ................................................................... (Pg. 122-123) 

F. Monthly Reports - EMS   ................................................................... (Pg. 124-130) 

 
ITEM 12. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 
 
ITEM 13. Adjourn 

Page 4 of 130



 
 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
 
 
Item Number:   3.A 
 
 PRESENTATION 
 
Meeting Date:   1/19/16 
Submitted By: Cameron Lowe, Interim 

County Extension Director 
 
 
ITEM TITLE:   Introduction of Austin Brown, 

newly hired Agriculture 
Extension Agent 

 
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Introducing Austin Brown to Commissioners and Community. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 
 

MOTION MADE BY: 
S. Duckwall     
G. Meiggs        
M. McLain        
C. Riggs           
T. White   
NO MOTION   

VOTE: 
S. Duckwall   
G. Meiggs   
M. McLain   
C. Riggs      
T. White  
ABSENT           
RECUSED    

Page 5 of 130



 
 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
 
 
Item Number:   3.B 
 
 PRESENTATION 
 
Meeting Date:   1/19/16 
Submitted By: Clerk to the Board 
 
 
ITEM TITLE:   COA Brand Presentation 
 
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Dr. Deitemeyer will provide a brief presentation on the new COA Brand 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 
 

MOTION MADE BY: 
S. Duckwall     
G. Meiggs        
M. McLain        
C. Riggs           
T. White   
NO MOTION   

VOTE: 
S. Duckwall   
G. Meiggs   
M. McLain   
C. Riggs      
T. White  
ABSENT           
RECUSED    

Page 6 of 130



 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
 
 
Item Number:   3.C 
 
PRESENTATION 
 
Meeting Date:   January 19, 2016 
Attachments:   1(12 Pages) 
Submitted By: Finance Officer 
 
ITEM TITLE:   Mid-Year Budget Review 
   
     
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Presentation to review Mid-Year Revenues and Expenses. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

NA  
 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 
S. Duckwall     
G. Meiggs        
M. McLain        
C. Riggs           
T. White   
NO MOTION   

VOTE: 
S. Duckwall   
G. Meiggs   
M. McLain   
C. Riggs      
T. White  
ABSENT           
RECUSED    

Page 7 of 130



MID-YEAR BUDGET REPORT 

 
JULY 1, 2015 THRU DECEMBER 31, 2015 

January 19, 2016 

Page 8 of 130



Mid-Year 

Expenditures 

2 

Page 9 of 130



DEPARTMENT Revised Budget YTD Expenditures Percent Expended 

GOVERNING BODY $98,614.00 $65,167.06 66.1% 

ADMINISTRATION $214,667.00 $109,306.09 50.9% 

ELECTIONS $133,494.00 $53,546.84 40.1% 

FINANCE & PERSONNEL $273,745.00 $140,791.31 51.4% 

TAX DEPARTMENT $404,850.00 $199,168.36 49.2% 

REGISTER OF DEEDS $202,714.00 $103,803.23 51.2% 

PLANNING & INSPECTIONS $479,978.00 $189,802.82 39.5% 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT $158,953.00 $62,868.28 39.6% 

BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS $418,849.00 $230,613.31 55.1% 

SHERIFF $1,610,971.00 $933,201.62 57.9% 

General Fund Expenditures 

• 48%-52% is about average for Mid-Year 
• Notifications sent to Department Heads in excess of 50% 
• Budgets above 55% will likely result in a budget amendment 

Page 10 of 130



DEPARTMENT Budget YTD Expenditures Percent Expended 

PUBLIC WORKS $114,107.00 $56,880.53 49.8% 

SOLID WASTE $646,413.00 $260,514.11 40.3% 

PUBLIC HEALTH $128,331.00 $58,986.48 46.0% 

EXTENSION $101,540.00 $25,595.19 25.2% 

LIBRARY $198,861.00 $90,065.21 45.3% 

PARKS & RECREATION $261,180.00 $125,878.20 48.2% 

SENIOR CENTER $121,017.00 $63,327.99 52.3% 

NON-DEPARTMENTAL $197,643.00 $78,945.45 39.9% 

CAPITAL OUTLAY & DEBT SERV $1,075,321.00 $328,454.00 30.5% 

SPECIAL APPROPRIATIONS $4,761,824.00 $2,190,174.90 46.0% 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND $11,943,395.00 $5,491,451.45 46.0% 

General Fund Expenditures 

• Vacant Ag Agent position contributed to low percent expended 
• Total Percent Expended is a positive indicator  

Page 11 of 130



Fund Expenditures 
Funds Budget Year-to-Date Actual Percentage 

GENERAL FUND $11,943,395 $5,491,451 46.0% 

CODE ENFORCEMENT REVOLVIN $18,000 $1,590 8.8% 

R/D AUTO ENHANCEMENT FUND $9,100 $0 0.0% 

TOURISM DEV AUTHORITY $46,500 $11,768 25.3% 

WATER/SEWER UPGRADE $507,000 $0 0.0% 

SO CAMDEN WATER/SEWER DIS $1,482,408 $504,983 34.1% 

DISMAL SWAMP GIFT SHOP $20,100 $5,991 29.8% 

WATERSHED DISTRICTS $169,388 $104,970 29.2% 

CH & S FIRE COMMISSION $785,778 $613,581 78.1% 

SOUTH MILLS FIRE COMMISSI $256,522 $146,224 57.0% 

SCHOOL FUND $3,850 $0 0.0% 

DSS TRUST FUND $33,400 $19,535 58.5% 

SOCIAL SERVICES $1,330,631 $666,006 50.1% 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROJ $40,500 $0 0.0% 

FEREBEE COURTHOUSE TRUST $1,530 $0 0.0% 

DISMAL SWAMP VISITOR CENT $161,180 $83,878 52.0% 

COMMUNITY PARK TRUST FUND $284,680 $158,815 55.8% 

REVALUATION RESERVE FUND $240,230 $46 0.0% 

UNRESTRICTED CAPITAL RESE $1,722,083 $196,029 11.4% 

SCHOOL CAPITAL RESERVE $1,285,255 $112,334 8.7% 

Expenditure Total $20,341,530 $8,061,720 39.6% 

• 0% Expended is typical for trust , agency and special use Funds 
• High amount for CH&S VFD is due to Truck purchase 
• Percentages above 55% may result in use of Fund Balance Reserves 

Page 12 of 130



Mid-Year 

Revenues 

6 

Page 13 of 130



General Fund Revenues 

0

2,000,000

4,000,000

6,000,000

8,000,000

10,000,000

12,000,000

REVISED BUDGET YEAR TO DATE

11,943,395  

7,402,701  

• Revenues are expected to be well above 50% at mid-year 
• Revenues are currently at historical levels of collection 
• Excess revenues will be easier to detect in March/April 

Page 14 of 130



Fund Revenues 
Funds Budget Year-to-Date Actual Percentage 

GENERAL FUND $11,943,395 $7,402,700 61.98% 

CODE ENFORCEMENT REVOLVIN $18,000 $633 3.52% 

R/D AUTO ENHANCEMENT FUND $9,100 $2,727 29.97% 

TOURISM DEV AUTHORITY $46,500 $10,544 22.68% 

WATER/SEWER UPGRADE $507,000 $41,368 8.16% 

SO CAMDEN WATER/SEWER DIS $1,482,408 $586,214 39.54% 

DISMAL SWAMP GIFT SHOP $20,100 $10,526 52.37% 

WATERSHED DISTRICTS $169,388 $104,970 61.97% 

CH & S FIRE COMMISSION $785,778 $490,886 62.47% 

SOUTH MILLS FIRE COMMISSI $256,522 $201,510 78.55% 

SCHOOL FUND $3,850 $4,315 112.07% 

DSS TRUST FUND $33,400 $17,349 51.94% 

SOCIAL SERVICES $1,330,631 $454,511 34.16% 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROJ $40,500 $206 0.51% 

FEREBEE COURTHOUSE TRUST $1,530 $1 0.05% 

DISMAL SWAMP VISITOR CENT $161,180 $71,433 44.32% 

COMMUNITY PARK TRUST FUND $284,680 $65,069 22.86% 

REVALUATION RESERVE FUND $240,230 $530 0.22% 

UNRESTRICTED CAPITAL RESE $1,722,083 $234,530 13.62% 

SCHOOL CAPITAL RESERVE $1,285,255 $198,663 15.46% 

Revenues Total $20,341,530 $9,898,686 48.66% 

• GF Revenues are currently at historical levels of collection 
• School Fund collections are up (penalties such as NSF fees) 
• Funds with low percentages are at historical levels for mid-year 

Page 15 of 130



Revenues vs. Expenses 

9 

Page 16 of 130



Expenditures vs. Revenues 

GF BUDGET GF YTD ALL FUNDS
BUDGET

ALL FUNDS
YTD

 7,402,701  

 9,898,686  

 11,943,395  

 5,491,451  

 20,341,530  

 8,061,720  

REVENUES

EXPENSES

Page 17 of 130



11 

Expenditures vs. Revenues 

 

BUDGET 
$11,943,395 

REVENUES EXPENSES

61.98% 

45.98% 

General Fund 

Page 18 of 130



12 

REVENUES EXPENSES

48.7% 

39.6% 

Expenditures vs. Revenues 

BUDGET 
$20,341,530  

All Funds 

Page 19 of 130



 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
Item Number:   4.A 
 
 Old Business 
 
Meeting Date:   January 19, 2016 
Attachments:   3 (5 pages)  
Submitted By: Tim White, Parks and Recreation 
 
ITEM TITLE:   Playground Design 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
In August of 2015 Camden County was awarded a Trillium Health Care Play Together 
Construction Grant for Accessible Playgrounds in the amount of $125,000.  
 
Over the last several months the Recreation Department was been meeting with Camden 
County Schools Teachers and Administrators as well as parents of special need children 
to decide what play elements to incorporate in  this new inclusive playground.  
 
 The recreation department submitted these ideas to three different recreational products 
companies. 
 
A design submitted by Carolina Parks & Play was chosen by the group and came in at 
the $125,000 budget.  This preferred design was then sent to Trillium for preliminary 
approval.  After review Trillium decided that they would like to see additional elements 
added to the chosen design and agreed to increase the budget to accommodate these. 
 
The new Carolina Parks & Play playground design incorporates their brand new 
Rhapsody outdoor music instruments.  
 
The second unique item on your playground is the Pulse Table Tennis. This wheelchair 
accessible, sensory rich game challenges kids to beat the lights as the “bounce” around 
the table. 
 
The main structure has a Sway Fun, a wheelchair accessible glider. It also has a conical 
Climber and a roller slide, among other slides and activity panels. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to approve the proposed playground design by Carolina Parks and Play 

MOTION MADE BY: 
S. Duckwall     
G. Meiggs        
M. McLain        
C. Riggs           
T. White   
NO MOTION   

VOTE: 
S. Duckwall   
G. Meiggs   
M. McLain   
C. Riggs      
T. White  
ABSENT           
RECUSED    

Page 20 of 130



1

Angela Wooten

From: dan@carolinaparksandplay.com
Sent: Friday, January 15, 2016 11:10 AM
To: Tim White
Cc: awooten@camdencountync.gov; Amy Corbitt
Subject: Re: design for Camden County
Attachments: 89218-1-3a.jpg; Att0220DC38.htm; 89218-1-3c.jpg; Att0220DDE8.htm; 89218-1-3d.jpg; 

Att02212BA8.htm; 89218-1-3.pdf; Att02212E18.htm; New Logo Small copy.jpg; 
Att02217068.htm; RSM_ZipKroozFooter.jpg; Att02217368.htm

Tim, 
 
Please see the new design below. 
 
I am still working on the final numbers and will send you the proposal as soon as I get it finished. 
 
FYI, this new design incorporates our brand new Rhapsody outdoor music instruments.  
 
The second unique item on your playground is the Pulse Table Tennis. This wheelchair accessible, sensory rich 
game challenges kids to beat the lights as the “bounce” around the table. 
 
The main structure has a Sway Fun, a wheelchair accessible glider. It also has a conical Climber and a roller 
slide, among other slides and activity panels. 
 
In order to give you abetter idea of these components, I have attached some videos to this email. 
 
The videos along with the 3D and 2D drawings should give you a good idea of what your playground will look 
like. (We will meet and discuss any color changes you would like to make. (please note that the Trillium logo in 
the surfacing is optional. We included it as a small way of saying thank you to Trillium) 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions on any of these items. Enjoy! 
 
  

Page 21 of 130



Page 22 of 130



Page 23 of 130



Page 24 of 130



Page 25 of 130



 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
 
 
Item Number:   4.B 
 
 Old Business 
 
Meeting Date:   January 19, 2016 
 
Attachments:   1  
 
Submitted By: Tim White, Parks and Recreation 
 
 
ITEM TITLE:   Open Gym Program 
 
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Attached is a document which reflects the attendance numbers for our Saturday Night 
Open Gym program from September 2015-December 2015.  Due to the lack of 
participation in this program the Recreation Department is recommending the following 
restructuring.  Currently open gym is available on Saturday nights throughout the year 
(excluding Holidays) and requires the county to pay part-time staff to run and supervise 
the gym.  We would like to suspend the Saturday night program and change the open 
gym activities to include Adult Volleyball on Tuesday nights and Adult Basketball on 
Thursday nights.  The programs would run April through August annually with full-time 
staff members supervising them and eliminating the need to pay part-time employees. 
This new plan was presented to the Parks and Recreation Advisory board and 
unanimously approved at the December 10, 2015 meeting. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Review and Approve 

MOTION MADE BY: 
S. Duckwall     
G. Meiggs        
M. McLain        
C. Riggs           
T. White   
NO MOTION   

VOTE: 
S. Duckwall   
G. Meiggs   
M. McLain   
C. Riggs      
T. White  
ABSENT           
RECUSED    

Page 26 of 130



 

September 

9/5/15 

CLOSED / Labor Day 

9/12/15 

Camden Residents – 5 

Non Residents – 0 

9/19/15 

Camden Residents – 0 

Non Residents – 0 

9/26/15 

CLOSED / NO WORKER 

September Totals 

Residents - 5 

Non-Residents– 0 

 

 

Timothy C. White 

Recreation Director 

 

Ben Carter  

Superintendent 

 

 

P.O. Box 190 

117 North 343 

Camden, NC  27921 

 

Phone (252) 338-1919 ext. 265 

Fax (252) 333-1603 

Saturday Night Open Gym 

October 

10/3/15  

Camden Residents - 1  

Non Residents— 0  

10/10/15 

Camden Residents – 0 

Non Residents – 0 

10/17/15 

Camden Residents – 0 

Non Residents—0 

10/24/15 

Camden Residents – 0 

Non Residents – 0 

10/31/15 

CLOSED / Halloween  

October Totals 

Residents - 1 

Non-Residents - 0 

 

November 

11/7/15 

Camden Residents – 0 

Non Residents – 0 

11/14/15  

Camden Residents – 0 

Non Residents – 0 

11/21/15 

CLOSED 

11/28/15 

 CLOSED / Thanksgiving  

November Totals 

Residents - 0 

Non-Residents - 0 

December 

12/5/15 

Camden Residents – 0 

Non Residents – 0 

12/12/15  

Camden Residents – 0 

Non Residents – 0 

12/19/15 

Camden Residents —6 

Non Residents – 1 

12/26/15 

 CLOSED / Christmas 

November Totals 

Residents - 6 

Non-Residents - 1 

Page 27 of 130



 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
 
 
Item Number:   4.C 
 
 Old Business 
 
Meeting Date:   January 19, 2016 
 
Attachments:   2  
 
Submitted By: Tim White, Parks and Recreation 
 
 
ITEM TITLE:   Camden Youth Football Seeking Recognized Status 
 
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Mrs. Karyn Smith President of the Camden Youth Football League made a request to the 
Camden County Parks and Recreation Advisory board on December 10, 2015 for her 
organization to obtain recognized status as a Category II sports organization. By a 
unanimous vote the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommends that the Camden 
Youth Football League be approved for this status.  All of the required documents as 
stated in the Camden County Parks and Recreation Department and Camden County 
Schools Memorandum of Understanding. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
A. Motion to approve Category II status for the Camden Youth Football League  
  or 
B. Motion to deny Category II status for the Camden Youth Football League 

MOTION MADE BY: 
S. Duckwall     
G. Meiggs        
M. McLain        
C. Riggs           
T. White   
NO MOTION   

VOTE: 
S. Duckwall   
G. Meiggs   
M. McLain   
C. Riggs      
T. White  
ABSENT           
RECUSED    

Page 28 of 130



Page 29 of 130



Page 30 of 130



Page 31 of 130



Page 32 of 130



Page 33 of 130



Page 34 of 130



Page 35 of 130



Page 36 of 130



 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
 
 
Item Number:   4.D 
 
Old Business 
 
Meeting Date:   January 19, 2016 
 
Attachments:   2 (2 Pages) 
 
Submitted By: Michael Renshaw, County 

Manager 
 
ITEM TITLE:   Proposal for 911 Central Communications 

Drive Testing and Radio Assessment 
 
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
On January 6th the Board attended a briefing from consultant Mission Critical 
Partners concerning an assessment report on the existing 911 Central 
Communications radio system.  This report had been funded in October 2015 by 
Camden, Pasquotank, and Elizabeth City on a cost-share basis per the terms of the 
current Central Communications interlocal agreement.  During this briefing the 
consultant advised the group that several elements of the existing radio system are 
inadequate for providing safe and reliable communications for public safety 
personnel. 
 
The consultant also presented a variety of options for addressing these 
deficiencies, and indicated that a further “drive testing” and assessment was 
recommended in addition to preliminary discussions with State VIPER radio 
system representatives.  During the January 6th briefing, the consultant presented a 
proposed fee for this drive testing and assessment of $60,000. 
 
The County Manager’s office was advised by the Pasquotank County Manager 
(see attached letter) that on January 12th the Pasquotank Board of Commissioners 
approved going forward with this drive testing and assessment, pending approval 

MOTION MADE BY: 
S. Duckwall     
G. Meiggs        
M. McLain        
C. Riggs           
T. White   
NO MOTION   

VOTE: 
S. Duckwall   
G. Meiggs   
M. McLain   
C. Riggs      
T. White  
ABSENT           
RECUSED    

Page 37 of 130



from both the Camden County Board of Commissioners and Elizabeth City 
Council.  Pasquotank County is awaiting a response from both Camden County 
and Elizabeth City. 
 
Also included in this report is an explanation from Mr. Mike Milas of Mission 
Critical Partners as to the scope of services to be provided in this proposed drive 
testing and assessment. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The County Manager recommends that the Board of Commissioners approve going 
forward with retaining the services of Mission Critical Partners for the performance of 
911 Central Communications Drive Testing and Assessment. 
 
Motion Requested:  To authorize the County Manager to execute a joint agreement 
involving the County, Pasquotank County, and Elizabeth City and with consultant 
Mission Critical Partners to include funding in an amount not to exceed $12,000.  

Page 38 of 130



Page 39 of 130



Page 40 of 130



Mission Critical Partners 
Preliminary Scope of Services and Fee Proposal 

 
Good morning Gentleman – The purpose of this email is to provide some additional detail regarding the 
recommended Drive Testing effort and the coordination with State VIPER staff. 
 
Our needs analysis and report provided propagation (predicted coverage) information for the VIPER 
system, but this was based on a paper analysis without any actual field testing. 
 
It is always a good idea to verify that predicted coverage will equal actual coverage.  Since the VIPER 
sites already exist, you are able to complete drive testing throughout the two counties which would 
gather actual signal strength data that could be compared to predicted coverage. In addition we would 
recommend actual voice call testing which verifies the signal strength data and correlates the quality of 
the voice call audio to the predicted and actual signal strength. We would need to coordinate this effort 
with the State prior to testing so that they would be aware of it and approve of the effort.  
 
Our testing effort would also include an analysis of the need for in-building coverage enhancements to a 
list of “critical buildings” such as the Courthouse, Jail, Hospital ER, etc.  This would allow you to create a 
sufficient budget contingency to add any in-building coverage enhancements to these building as part of 
the overall budget. 
 
We believe that the above could be accomplished over the course of one-week on site for two of our 
staff (myself and Tim Hennemann the project Engineer). After data gathering we would analyze the 
information gathered and provide a set of recommendations based on the findings. This would entail a 
brief report and another on-site presentation similar to last evenings if so desired. 
 
With regard to coordination with State VIPER staff we would recommend the following; 
 

         Exchange preliminary information and analysis findings regarding anticipated site loading 
(capacity) in advance of a face to face meetings 

         Meet with the State reps to discuss; 
o   Site channel loading 
o   The possibility of a new site 
o   Connectivity options to the VIPER switch in Farmville 
o   Any 911 Center console modifications and reconfiguration that might be required 
o   The VIPER system use guidelines 
o   The terms of a system use agreement 
o    Other related issues that would give you a clear understanding of what the process and 

costs would be to move forward 
 
We believe that the above effort can be accomplished for approximately $60,000, however, our formal 
scope and fee proposal would be based on a confirmation of desired effort from you after the 
opportunity to review the above concept with you and confirm that budget and scope would be in 
alignment. 
 
Mike Milas, Mission Critical Partners 
 

Page 41 of 130



 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
 
 
Item Number:   5.A 
 
New Business: 
 
Meeting Date:   January 19th, 2015 
Attachments:   7 
Submitted By: Lisa S. Anderson 
 Tax Administrator 
 
ITEM TITLE:   Monthly Tax Report 
 
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
November Monthly Reports 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Review & Approve 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 
S. Duckwall     
G. Meiggs        
M. McLain        
C. Riggs           
T. White   
NO MOTION   

VOTE: 
S. Duckwall   
G. Meiggs   
M. McLain   
C. Riggs      
T. White  
ABSENT           
RECUSED    

Page 42 of 130



Page 43 of 130



Page 44 of 130



Page 45 of 130



Page 46 of 130



Page 47 of 130



Page 48 of 130



Page 49 of 130



 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
 
 
Item Number:   5.B 
 

New Business 
 
Meeting Date:   January 19th, 2016 
Attachments:   (1 Page) 
Submitted By: Krystal Lancaster, Head 

Librarian 
 
 
ITEM TITLE:  Camden County Public Library Logo  
 
 
 
 
SUMMARY:   
 
The Camden County Public Library Board of Trustees voted to hold a contest for 

local high school students to design a logo for the Camden Public Library. 

Guidelines asked that entries be consistent in appearance with the County logo. 

The Board narrowed the entries down to two finalists, images attached. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The Camden County Public Library Board of Trustees voted to hold a contest for 

local high school students to design a logo for the Camden Public Library. 

Guidelines asked that entries be consistent in appearance with the County logo. 

The Board narrowed the entries down to two finalists, images attached. 
 
 

MOTION MADE BY: 
S. Duckwall     
G. Meiggs        
M. McLain        
C. Riggs           
T. White   
NO MOTION   

VOTE: 
S. Duckwall   
G. Meiggs   
M. McLain   
C. Riggs      
T. White  
ABSENT           
RECUSED    

Page 50 of 130



Entry A  Entry B  

Camden County Public Library  

Logo Contest Finalists 

Page 51 of 130



 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
 
 
Item Number:   5.C 
 
New Business 
 
Meeting Date:   January 19, 2016 
Attachments:   (12 Pages) 
Submitted By: Krystal Lancaster, Head 

Librarian 
 
 
 
ITEM TITLE:  Patron Utilization of Camden County Public Library's 

Extended Hours of Operation  
 
 
SUMMARY:  
 
On June 1, 2015, the Camden County Board of Commissioners voted to change 

the Library’s hours of operation as recommended by the Library Board of 

Trustees.  

 

This presentation will provide an overview of patron attendance and circulation 

statistics during these hours. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 I request that the Board of Commissioners review the collected statistics and 

determine whether they feel that the library should continue operating under the 

current schedule, or an adapted schedule. 
 
 

MOTION MADE BY: 
S. Duckwall     
G. Meiggs        
M. McLain        
C. Riggs           
T. White   
NO MOTION   

VOTE: 
S. Duckwall   
G. Meiggs   
M. McLain   
C. Riggs      
T. White  
ABSENT           
RECUSED    

Page 52 of 130



Camden County Public 
Library 

Patron Utilization of the Extended 
Hours of Operation 

Page 53 of 130



Purpose of Report 

On June 1, 2015, the Camden County Board of 

Commissioners voted to change the Library’s hours of 

operation as recommended by the Library Board of 

Trustees.  

They asked that statistics be kept regarding library usage 

during these extended hours. 

 

Page 54 of 130



Current Operating Schedule 

For the period of April 1 – October 31, on Monday – Saturday, doors will open at 

9:00 a.m. and will close at 8:00 p.m. 

  

For the period of November 1 – March 31, on Monday – Saturday, doors will open at 

9:00 a.m. and will close at 6:00 p.m. 

  

During the entire year, on Sunday, doors will open at 1:00 p.m. and will close at 5:00 

p.m.  

 

The Library Board recommended that Sunday hours not begin until November 1, 

2015.  

 

Page 55 of 130



Data Collected 

Number of people entering the building between 6pm and 8pm, July 

through October. 

Average number of items checked out between 9am-8pm, July through 

October. 

Distribution of library use from 9am-8pm for the month of October. 

Number of people entering the building on Sundays during November, 

December, and early January. 

Page 56 of 130



From July to October 31, 2015: 

Usage of the extended hours varied greatly. 

The library was open a total of 210 extra hours.  

45 of those hours had zero library entries, or 21% of that time.  

97 of those hours had two or fewer library entries, or 46% of 

that time. 

46 of those hours had six or more library entries, or 22% of 

that time. 

 

Page 57 of 130



Average Visits Based on Day of Week 
July 2015-October 2015 

Visits during the extended hours 

were highest at the beginning 

of the week and generally 

decreased as the week went 

on.  

Mondays and Tuesdays were the 

most popular evenings. 

Saturdays and Fridays were the 

least popular evenings. 

Page 58 of 130



Average Visits By Hour 
July 2015-October 2015 

An average of 4.3 patrons came 

to the library between        

6pm-7pm. 

An average of 2.5 patrons came 

to the library between        

7pm-8pm. 

Almost twice the number of 

patrons visited during the 

6pm-7pm time than 7pm-8pm. 

Page 59 of 130



Average Number of Check Outs 
July 2015-October 2015 

Peak circulation time was 3pm-4pm, 

with 17% of checkouts during 

this hour. 

6% of total checkouts occurred from 

6pm-7pm. 

4% of total checkouts occurred from 

7pm-8pm. 

Considering salary and utility costs, 

average cost per check out was 

$4.64 during the 6pm-8pm time 

frame. 

Page 60 of 130



How Do These Numbers Compare to a Typical Day? 
October 2015 

Peak times for library 

usage were 10:30am-

11:30am and 3pm-4pm 

with an average of 20 

and 17 patrons, 

respectively.   

Low usage was recorded 

at 7pm-8pm and 

9:30am-10:30am, with 

7 and 9 patrons, 

respectively. 

 

Page 61 of 130



How Do These Numbers Compare to a Typical Day? 
October 2015 

For October, usage during the 

extended hours accounted for 

12% of total usage. 

The majority of the data matches the 

trends that were found in the 

quarterly data--the most popular 

evenings were Tuesdays and 

Mondays, and the least popular 

evening was Saturday. 

Wednesday also emerged as an 

evening with very low usage. 
*Data was limited to October 5-31 in order to ensure an 

equal number of weekdays were examined. 

Page 62 of 130



Utilization of Sunday Hours 
November-January 

Beginning November 1, 2015, 

the library has been open 

Sundays from 1pm-5pm.  

On average, 25 users visited 

the library during this time. 

The average number of items 

checked out was 37.5. 

Cost per checkout was 

$3.09. 

Page 63 of 130



Summary 

Usage of the extended hours varied greatly based on time and day of the week. 

Both library visits and circulation statistics suggest that the 6pm-7pm hour was 

more popular than the 7pm-8pm hour. 

The extended hours were utilized the most on Mondays, Tuesdays, and Thursdays. 

They were used the least on Saturdays, Fridays, and Wednesdays. 

While overall usage was low compared to typical operating hours, trends in 

increased usage suggest that a modified version of the current schedule                      

(e.g. later evening hours on certain days and/or Sunday hours) may be 

warranted. 

Page 64 of 130



 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
 
 
Item Number:   5.D 
 
 New Business 
 
Meeting Date:   January 19, 2016 
 
Attachments:   1 (9 Pages) 
 
Submitted By: Tim White, Parks & 

Recreation Director 
 
ITEM TITLE:   Alternative Sports Fields 
 
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
As interest in youth sports continues to expand in the County, it has become clear 
that additional outdoor sports fields are needed in order to meet the field-space 
demands created by this increased interest.  In 2016 it is possible that Camden 
will have two recognized youth football organizations, youth baseball/softball, 
and a new youth soccer program.  The existing sports field space located 
primarily within the Camden Community Park facility has insufficient field space 
to accommodate this demand. 
 
In October 2015 a sub-committee of the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board was 
formed to begin examining alternatives in regards to identifying property to be 
used for the construction of outdoor sport fields as well as developing a 
preliminary budget for the construction of these fields to include lighting. 
 
The Alternative Sports Fields Committee met on October 29 and December 3, 
2015.  During these meetings, the group discussed the current scheduled uses and 
limitations of the existing field space relative to the demands of adding a second 
recognized youth football organization, a future youth soccer program in the Fall 
of 2016, and co-uses of the existing fields by Camden County Public Schools 
under the terms of the Field Facility Use Agreement. 
 

MOTION MADE BY: 
S. Duckwall     
G. Meiggs        
M. McLain        
C. Riggs           
T. White   
NO MOTION   

VOTE: 
S. Duckwall   
G. Meiggs   
M. McLain   
C. Riggs      
T. White  
ABSENT           
RECUSED    

Page 65 of 130



Information collected and discussed during the Alternative Sports Fields 
Committee meetings was presented to the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board on 
December 10, 2015.  On a motion made during this meeting, the Parks & 
Recreation Advisory Board recommends that the County move forward with 
design and construction of additional lighted sports fields using a 12 acre site 
which the County currently owns at the intersection of US 17 and McPherson 
Road in South Mills.  The site is currently being leased as farm land however the 
lease agreement has expired. 
 
The Advisory Board also recommends that the County make application to the 
Parks and Recreation Trust Fund (PARTF) and Land and Water Conservation 
Fund (LWCF) in order to assist in project funding.  Both grants require a 50 per 
cent local funding match.  PARTF provides funding up to $500,000 and LWCF 
funds projects up to $250,000.    

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The County Manager recommends that the Board of Commissioners approve the use of 
the McPherson Road site identified in this presentation as additional sports fields. 
 
Motion Requested:  Authorize the County Manager to obtain formal design and project 
construction cost estimates and to make application to the Parks and Recreation Trust 
Fund and Land and Water Conservation Fund during the 2016 grant cycle. 

Page 66 of 130



Alternative Sports Field Committee 

Page 67 of 130

http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwja7uruu6TKAhUM4yYKHdycA_wQjRwIBw&url=http://www.soccercenters.com/field-rentals/outdoor-field-rentals/&bvm=bv.111396085,d.eWE&psig=AFQjCNHhXdwYdgyLpDfj7QA1aSWxQWSjSg&ust=1452694741556805


 

Camden County High School Girls Soccer  
 Mid-February through Mid-May (Front Soccer Field) 
Monday-Friday 3:30pm-6:00pm, Saturday mornings 

 

Camden County High School Track & Field  
 Mid-February – Mid-May (Track, Discus, Shotput, High Jump & Long Jump) 

Monday-Friday 3:30pm-5:30pm 
 

Camden Middle School Track & Field  
 Mid-February – Mid-May (Track, Discus, Shotput, High Jump & Long Jump) 

Monday-Friday 3:30pm-5:30pm 
 

Camden Youth League Baseball & Softball  
 Late March through Mid-July (Field 1, Field 2, Field 3, Field 4, Field 5, Field 6, Field 7 & Field 8) 

 Monday-Friday 5:00pm-9:00pm, Saturday (all day) 
 

Camden County High School Boys Soccer  
August through Mid-November (Front Soccer Field) 

Monday-Friday 3:30pm-8:30pm 
 

Camden Bears Youth Football and Cheerleading 
 August through Mid-November (Front Soccer Field) 

 Monday-Thursday 6:30pm-8:30pm (exceptions: CCHS Home Soccer Games) 
 

Shiloh Sharks Youth Football and Cheerleading 
 August through Mid-November (Open Practice Area) 

Monday-Thursday 5:00pm-8:00pm 
 

**Camden Youth League SOCCER (fall of 2016)** 
August through Mid-November (Location ???) 

Monday-Friday, Saturday (all day) 

Page 68 of 130



Fie
ld

 1 

Fie
ld

 2 

Fie
ld

 3 

Fie
ld

 4 

Fie
ld

 6 
Fie

ld
 5 

Fie
ld

 7 

Fie
ld

 8 

Open Practice Area 

H
igh

 Ju
m

p 

D
iscu

s 

Sh
o

t P
u

t 

Page 69 of 130



• Noblitt Property (adjacent to Community Park) 
 

• Morrissett Property ( NC Hwy 343/158) 
 

• Williams Property ( NC Hwy 158) 
 

• County Property (future Camden County High School site) 
 
• County Property (McPherson Rd./US Hwy 17) 
 
 

Page 70 of 130



Page 71 of 130



PARKING 

SOCCER FIELDS 

RESTROOMS/CONCESSION 

FITNESS STATIONS(12) 

SIDEWALK/FITNESS TRAIL 

FENCING 

Page 72 of 130



Site Prep      $24,000 
-Field cultivate, land plane, roll and seed 
 

Restroom/Concession Building    $60,000 
 

Parking Lot      $110,000 
-2 acres (200-230 spaces) 6” stone base 
 

Concrete Sidewalk/Walking Trail    $45,000 
-2,500 linear feet/6’ wide 
 

Fitness Stations      $18,000 
-12 station along walking trail 
 

Fencing       $27,000 
-1,800 linear feet 
 

Field Lighting      $225,000 
-2 Soccer Fields 360’ x 225’ = (4-6 youth size fields) 
 

Field Sod & Irrigation     $125,000 
 

TOTAL        $634,000  

Page 73 of 130



PARTF Grant  
Parks and Recreation Trust Fund Grant 50/50 local match  

up to $500,000 
 

LWCF Grant 
Land and Water Conservation Fund 50/50 local match  

up to $250,000 
 

Page 74 of 130



 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
 
 
Item Number:   6.A 
 
Board appointments 
 
Meeting Date:   January 19th, 2015 
Attachments:   1 
Submitted By: Clerk to the Board 
 
ITEM TITLE:   Board Vacancy  
 
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Staff received the attached letter of resignation from the Camden County Library Board 
of Trustees and the East Albemarle Regional Library Board. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to direct staff to advertise vacancies on the Library Board of Trustees & the East 
Albemarle Regional Library Board 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 
S. Duckwall     
G. Meiggs        
M. McLain        
C. Riggs           
T. White   
NO MOTION   

VOTE: 
S. Duckwall   
G. Meiggs   
M. McLain   
C. Riggs      
T. White  
ABSENT           
RECUSED    

Page 75 of 130



January 2016

Dear Camden County Commissioners,

Iwant to thank you for entrusting me with the responsibilities of representing
the citizens of Camden County on both the Library Board of Trustees and the
East Albemarle Regional Library Board. It saddens me to inform you thaia this
time Iam resigning my position from both boards effective January 15,2016.

With much respect,

Judy Renshaw

Page 76 of 130



 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
 
 
Item Number:   7.A  
 

Consent Agenda 
 
Meeting Date:   January 19, 2016 
Attachments:   1 
Submitted By: Clerk to the Board 
 
ITEM TITLE:   Draft Minutes 
   
     
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 

November 2nd, 2016  
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Approve Request  
 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 
S. Duckwall     
G. Meiggs        
M. McLain        
C. Riggs           
T. White   
NO MOTION   

VOTE: 
S. Duckwall   
G. Meiggs   
M. McLain   
C. Riggs      
T. White  
ABSENT           
RECUSED    

Page 77 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   1 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 1 
Regular Meeting  2 

November 2nd, 2015 3 
7:00 P.M. - Regular Meeting 4 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 5 
Camden, North Carolina 6 

 7 
MINUTES 8 

 9 
The regular meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held 10 
on November 2nd, 2015 in the Historic Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina.  11 
The following Commissioners were present: 12 
 13 

Chairman P. Michael McLain, Vice Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall, 14 
Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White; 15 

 16 
Also attending were County Manager Michael Renshaw, County Attorney John 17 
Morrison and Clerk to the Board Angela L. Wooten.  Present for purposes of 18 
making a presentation(s) or providing supporting information for agenda items 19 
were the following persons:  Planning Director Dan Porter, Finance Officer 20 
Stephanie Humphries, Zoning and Permit Officer Dave Parks, HR Manager 21 
Stephanie Jackson, Tax Administrator Lisa Anderson and Public Works Director 22 
David Credle. 23 
 24 
Regular Session, 7:00 P.M. 25 
 26 
Chairman McLain called to order the November 2nd, 2015 meeting of the 27 
Camden County Board of Commissioners at 7:00 PM. 28 
 29 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 30 
 31 
Commissioner Garry Meiggs gave the invocation and led those present in the 32 
Pledge of Allegiance. 33 
 34 

 35 
Public Comments 36 
 37 
Christie Hall of 137 Pudding Ridge Road in South Mills came before the board 38 
with the following comments: 39 
 40 

Page 78 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   2 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

 She would like to request that the Public Hearing for the proposed Green 41 
Meadows Special Use Permit be held during the December 7th, 2015 Board 42 
of Commissioners meeting. 43 

 If the Board approves the proposed public hearing date of November 16th, 44 
2015 that only leaves 12 days until the hearing.  45 

 Many residents will need to make arrangements for Child Care, Senior 46 
Care, and transportation and/or adjust their work schedules to attend the 47 
hearing. 48 

 49 

 50 
Consideration of Agenda  51 
 52 
Chairman McLain asked if there were any changes to the agenda.  Not hearing 53 
any changes, Chairman McLain called for a motion. 54 
 55 
Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to approve the agenda as presented.  56 
The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman Michael McLain, Vice Chairwoman Sandra 57 
Duckwall, Commissioners Tom White, Garry Meiggs and Clayton Riggs voting 58 
aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioners absent; and no 59 
Commissioner not voting.  60 
 61 

 62 
Presentations 63 
 64 
Item 3.A - NCACC Annual Safety Award 65 
 66 
The NCACC Director of Risk Management Pools Michael Kelly came to the 67 
Board to present an award to Camden for having the least amount of Workers 68 
Compensation claims for Small Counties. 69 

 70 
 71 
Item 3.B - Gwen Westcott – Senior Tar heel 72 
 73 
Camden County’s Senior Heel Delegate Gwen Westcott came before the board to 74 
provide Senior Tar Heel updates. 75 
 76 

 Warns seniors to carefully read their insurance policies and have their power of 77 
attorney review it regularly.  78 

 Keep a flashlight in every room 79 
 The key to the Fountain of Youth is to exercise 30 minutes a day.  80 

Page 79 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   3 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

 81 
 82 
Item 3.C - Kim Parrish - SPCA 83 
 84 
Kim Parrish from the SPCA comes to the board to provide updates concerning 85 
the new SPCA animal shelter. 86 
 87 

 The new SPCA Animal Shelter should be open by June 2016 and is located at 102 88 
Enterprise Dr. in Elizabeth City, NC.  89 

 Camden Rabies Clinic completed 96 vaccinations. 90 
 Animal adoption process includes an extensive application process. 91 
 All animals will have all vaccinations, a micro-chip and must be spayed and 92 

neutered before being adopted. 93 
 Help support your SPCA buy purchasing a $50.00 brick in dedication of a family 94 

member or favorite pet. 95 

 96 
 97 
Old Business 98 
 99 
Item 4.A - Storm Water Drainage Design Manual 100 
 101 
Planning Director Dan Porter advises the board that the Public Hearing was held 102 
October 5th, 2015 and now he is presenting the manual for adoption by the board.  103 
 104 
Commissioner Tom White made a motion to adopted the Storm Water Drainage 105 
Design Manual The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman Michael McLain, Vice 106 
Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Tom White, Garry Meiggs and 107 
Clayton Riggs voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioners absent; 108 
and no Commissioner not voting.  109 
 110 

 111 
New Business 112 
 113 
Item 5.A - Monthly Tax Report 114 
 115 
Tax Administrator Lisa Anderson presented the Monthly Tax Report for 116 
September 2015. 117 
 118 
 119 

Page 80 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   4 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

 120 
MONTHLY REPORT OF THE TAX ADMINISTRATOR TO THE 

CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OUTSTANDING TAX DELINQUENCIES BY YEAR 

   

YEAR-- REAL PROPERTY  PERSONAL PROPERTY  

2014  161,140.93  7,263.61  
2013  62,561.19  10,159.56  
2012  28,839.10  12,720.13  
2011  16,531.99  9,990.02  
2010  16,619.18  6,416.37  
2009  6,999.62  6,061.83  
2008  6,133.35  6,252.36  
2007  6,056.33  9,594.66  
2006  1,996.46  14,453.25  
2005  1,690.71  26,367.95  
TOTAL REAL PROPERTY TAX UNCOLLECTED 308,568.86 
TOTAL PERSONAL PROPERTY UNCOLLECTED 109,279.74 
TEN YEAR PERCENTAGE COLLECTION RATE 99.38% 
COLLECTION FOR 2015 VS. 2014 15,756.45 VS. 17,961.83 
  
LAST 3 YEARS PERCENTAGE COLLECTION RATE  

   
2014 97.52%  
2013 98.96%  
2012 99.42%  

 121 
The County Manager Mike Renshaw advised the board of the new Tax Policy and 122 
Procedures Committee and the need of two commissioners.  This committee will 123 
review and update the Camden County Tax policy and Procedures Manual.    124 
 125 
Commissioners Tom white and Clayton Riggs volunteered themselves to service 126 
on this committee.   127 
  128 
Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall made a motion to approve the monthly tax report as 129 
presented. The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman Michael McLain, Vice 130 
Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Tom White, Garry Meiggs and 131 
Clayton Riggs voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioners absent; 132 
and no Commissioner not voting.  133 

 134 
 135 

Page 81 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   5 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

Item 5.B - WWII Coastwise Mariners 136 
 137 
On April 20th, 2015 the board approved Resolution No. 2015-04-03 in support of 138 
an alternative method of recognition for veteran status to WWII coastwise 139 
merchant mariners. 140 
 141 
Mr. Don Horton comes to the board presenting the status of this issue and 142 
requests the board again support recognition of the WW II coastwise (barge & 143 
tugboat) merchant mariners by letter of support. 144 
 145 
Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to direct staff to draft a letter of 146 
support.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman Michael McLain, Vice 147 
Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Tom White, Garry Meiggs and 148 
Clayton Riggs voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioners absent; 149 
and no Commissioner not voting.  150 
 151 

 152 
 153 
Item 5.C - Amendment to approved Ordinance No. 2015-06-03 – Proposed 154 
amendments to Chapter 151 (Unified Development Ordinance) of the Camden 155 
County Code Ordinances 156 
 157 
Planning Director Dan Porter advises that in his discussions with John Gerber 158 
(State NFIP Coordinator) (email attached) we have identified additional language 159 
and modified what was approved to the articles dealing with Floodplain 160 
Management. 161 
 162 
In speaking with County Attorney, he stated that since the approved ordinance 163 
has not been codified into the Code of Ordinances that it could be brought back 164 
to the Commission as an amendment to the approved ordinance. 165 
 166 
Mandy Todd (State Community Rating System (CRS) Specialist) will be visiting 167 
Camden on November 13, 2015 to go over Camden’s request to become part of 168 
the Community Rating System. 169 
 170 

Amendment to 171 
Ordinance No. 2015-06-03 172 

 173 
An Ordinance 174 

Amending the Camden County 175 
Code of Ordinances 176 

Page 82 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   6 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

   177 
Camden County, North Carolina 178 

 179 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS as 180 
follows: 181 
 182 
Article I: Purpose 183 
 184 
The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Chapter 151 of the Camden County Code of 185 
Ordinances of Camden County, North Carolina, which was originally adopted by the 186 
County Commissioners on December 15, 1997, and subsequently amended and as 187 
otherwise incorporated into the Camden County Code. 188 
  189 
Article II. Construction 190 
 191 
For purposes of this Ordinance, underlined words (underline) shall be considered as 192 
additions to existing Ordinance language and strikethrough words (strikethrough) 193 
shall be considered deletions to existing language.  New language of proposed 194 
ordinance shall be shown in italics (italics) and underlined. 195 
 196 
Article III. Amend Chapter 151 as amended of the Camden County Code which 197 

shall read as follows: 198 
 199 
  CHAPTER 151:  UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 200 
 201 
§ 151.347 SPECIFIC STANDARDS. 202 
 203 
(V) The following standards shall apply to all solar farms located in Camden County: 204 
 205 
  (1) The minimum lot size for all solar farms shall be five acres. 206 
 207 
  (2) All structures shall meet the minimum setback for the zoning in which 208 
located. 209 
 210 
  (3) There shall be 50 foot buffer from routine view from public rights of way or 211 
adjacent residentially zoned property. 212 
 213 
  (4) Solar power electric generation structures shall not exceed a height of 25 214 
feet. 215 
 216 
  (5) The solar farm shall conform to the NAICS 22119 description of a ground 217 
mounted solar powered energy system. 218 
 219 
            (6)  The solar farm shall have 12 months to complete decommissioning of the 220 
solar facility if no electricity is generated for a continuous period of 12 months.  For 221 
purposes of this section, this 12-month period shall not include delay resulting from force 222 
majeure. 223 

Page 83 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   7 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

 224 
            (7) The County shall periodically request proof of the continuous operation of the 225 
solar farm from the applicant/owner.  The nature of required evidence shall be 226 
determined as a condition of the Special Use Permit. 227 
 228 
            (8)  Decommissioning shall include removal of solar panels, buildings, cabling, 229 
electrical components, roads, and any other associated facilities down to 36 inches below 230 
grade. 231 
 232 
            (9)  Applicant shall provide prior to approval of building permits, an irrevocable 233 
letter of credit in favor of the county in an amount equal to the estimated removal cost of 234 
the solar facility, less the salvage value of the equipment, which shall be issued by a 235 
federally chartered bank with a branch office in northeastern North Carolina at which 236 
the letter of credit may be drawn and paid in full in immediately available funds in the 237 
event the solar facility owner fails to decommission the solar facility pursuant to the 238 
requirements of this section.  The estimated cost of removal shall be updated every five 239 
(5) years from date of approval for solar farm. 240 
 241 
            (10)  Disturbed earth shall be graded and re-seeded, unless the landowner 242 
requests in writing that the access roads or other land surface areas not be restored. 243 
 244 
  (6 11) Solar farms located within FEMA’s 100 year flood shall elevate all 245 
electrical connections one foot above the base flood elevation (BFE). 246 
 247 
  (7 12) All collectors shall be surrounded by a lockable minimum height six 248 
foot fence. 249 
 250 
  251 
§ 151.380 FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION. 252 
 253 
§ 151.382 GENERAL PROVISIONS. 254 
 255 
 (A) Lands to which this subchapter applies.  This subchapter shall apply to all 256 
special flood hazard areas within the county. 257 
 258 
 (B) Basis for establishing the special flood hazard areas.  The special flood hazard 259 
areas are those identified by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) or 260 
produced under the Cooperating Technical State (CTS) agreement between the State of 261 
North Carolina and FEMA in its Flood Hazard Boundary Map (FHBM) or Flood 262 
Insurance Study (FIS) and its accompanying flood maps such as the Flood Insurance 263 
Rate Map(s) (FIRM) and/or the Flood Boundary Floodway Map(s) (FBFM), for Camden 264 
County dated October 5, 2004, which, with accompanying supporting data, and any 265 
revision thereto, including letters of map amendment or revision, are adopted by 266 
reference and declared to be a part of this subchapter.  The special flood hazard areas 267 
also include those defined through standard engineering analysis for private 268 
developments or by governmental agencies, but which have not yet been incorporated in 269 

Page 84 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   8 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

the FIRM.  This includes, but is not limited to: 270 
 271 
  (1) Detailed flood data generated as a requirement of § 151.383 of this 272 
subchapter; 273 
 274 
  (2) Preliminary FIRMs where more stringent than the effective FIRM; or  275 
 276 
  (3) Post-disaster flood recovery maps. 277 
 278 
       (B)  The Special Flood Hazard Areas are those identified under the Cooperating 279 
Technical State (CTS) agreement between the State of North Carolina and FEMA in its 280 
FIS dated October 5, 2004 for Camden County and associated DFIRM panels, including 281 
any digital data developed as part of the Flood Insurance Study, which are adopted by 282 
reference and declared a part of this ordinance. Future revisions to the FIS and DFIRM 283 
panels that do not change flood hazard data within the jurisdictional authority of 284 
Camden County are also adopted by reference and declared a part of this ordinance. 285 
 286 
 (C) Establishment of Floodplain Development Permit.  A Floodplain Development 287 
Permit shall be required in conformance with the provisions of this subchapter prior to 288 
the commencement of any development activities within special flood hazard areas as 289 
determined in § 151.382(B). 290 
 291 
§ 151.383 ADMINISTRATION. 292 
 293 
(F) Corrective procedures. 294 
   295 
  (3) Order to take corrective action.  If, upon a hearing held pursuant to the 296 
notice prescribed above, the Floodplain Administrator shall find that the building or 297 
development is in violation of the Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance, he or she shall 298 
issue an order in writing to the owner, requiring the owner to remedy the violation within 299 
a specified time period, not less to exceed than 60 days.  Where the Floodplain 300 
Administrator finds that there is imminent danger to life or other property, he or she may 301 
order that corrective action be taken in such lesser period as may be feasible. 302 
 303 
 304 
§ 151.384 GENERAL STANDARDS. 305 
 306 
 (A) In all Special Flood Hazard Areas the following provisions are required: 307 
 308 
  (1) All new construction and substantial improvements shall be anchored to 309 
prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the structure. 310 
 311 
  (2) All new construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed 312 
with materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage. 313 
 314 
  (3) All new construction or substantial improvements shall be constructed by 315 

Page 85 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   9 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

methods and practices that minimize flood damages. 316 
 317 
  (4) Electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing, air conditioning equipment, and 318 
other service facilities shall be designed and/or located so as to prevent water from 319 
entering or accumulating within the components during conditions of flooding.  These 320 
include but are not limited to HVAC equipment, water softener units, bath/kitchen 321 
fixtures, ductwork, electric meter panels/boxes, utility/cable boxes, appliances (i,e., 322 
washers, dryers, refrigerator, etc. ), hot water heaters, electric outlets/switches. 323 
 324 
 325 
 (B) Specific standards.  In all Special Flood Hazard Areas where Base Flood 326 
Elevation (BFE) data has been provided, as set forth in § 151.382(B), or § 151.383, the 327 
following provisions are required: 328 
 329 
  (1) Residential construction.  New construction or substantial improvement of 330 
any residential structure (including manufactured homes) shall have the reference level, 331 
including basement, elevated no lower than the regulatory flood protection elevation, as 332 
defined in § 151.600, Definitions. 333 
 334 
  (2) Non-residential construction.  New construction or substantial improvement 335 
of any commercial, or industrial, or other non-residential structure shall have the 336 
reference level, including basement, elevated no lower than the regulatory flood 337 
protection elevation.  Structures located in A and AE Zones may be floodproofed to the 338 
regulatory flood protection elevation in lieu of elevation provided that all areas of the 339 
structure below the required flood protection elevation are watertight with walls 340 
substantially impermeable to the passage of water, using structural components having 341 
the capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and the effect of 342 
buoyancy. A registered professional engineer or architect shall certify that the standards 343 
of this subsection are satisfied.  Such certification shall be provided to the official as set 344 
forth in § 151.383(B)(3). 345 
 346 
  (3) Manufactured homes. 347 
 348 
   (a) New or replacement manufactured homes shall be elevated so that the 349 
reference level of the manufactured home is no lower than the regulatory flood protection 350 
elevation, as defined in § 151.600, Definitions. 351 
 352 
   (b) Manufactured homes shall be securely anchored to an adequately 353 
anchored foundation to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement in accordance 354 
with the State of North Carolina Regulations for Manufactured/Mobile Homes, 1995 355 
Edition, and any revision thereto adopted by the Commissioner of Insurance pursuant to 356 
G.S. § 143-143.15 or a certified engineered foundation. Additionally, when the elevation 357 
would be met by an elevation of the chassis 36 inches or less above the grade at the site, 358 
the chassis shall be supported by reinforced piers or other foundation elements of at least 359 
equivalent strength. When the elevation of the chassis is above 36 inches in height, an 360 
engineering certification is required. 361 

Page 86 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   10 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

 362 
   (c) All foundation enclosures or skirting shall be in accordance with § 363 
151.383(B)(4). 364 
 365 
   (d) An evacuation plan must be developed for evacuation of all residents of 366 
all new, substantially improved or substantially damaged manufactured home parks or 367 
subdivisions located within flood prone areas. This plan shall be filed with and approved 368 
by the Floodplain Administrator and the local emergency management coordinator. 369 
 370 
  (4) Elevated buildings.  Enclosed areas, of new construction or substantially 371 
improved structures, which are below the regulatory flood protection. 372 
 373 
   (a) Shall not be designed or used for human habitation, but shall only be 374 
designed and used for parking of vehicles, building access, or limited storage of 375 
maintenance equipment used in connection with the premises.  Access to the enclosed 376 
area shall be the minimum necessary to allow for parking of vehicles (garage door) or 377 
limited storage of maintenance equipment (standard exterior door), or entry to the living 378 
area (stairway or elevator). The interior portion of such enclosed area shall not be 379 
partitioned or finished into separate rooms, except to enclose storage areas; 380 
 381 
   (b) Shall be constructed entirely of flood resistant materials below the 382 
regulatory flood protection elevation; 383 
 384 
   (c) Shall include measures to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood 385 
forces on exterior walls by allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters.  To meet this 386 
requirement, the foundation must either be certified by a professional engineer or 387 
architect or meet the following minimum design criteria: 388 
 389 
    1. Provide a minimum of two openings on different sides of each 390 
enclosed area subject to flooding; 391 
 392 
    2. The total net area of all openings must be at least one square inch 393 
for each square foot of each enclosed area subject to flooding; 394 
 395 
    3. If a building has more than one enclosed area, each area must 396 
have openings on exterior walls to allow floodwater to enter directly; 397 
 398 
    4. The bottom of all required openings shall be no higher than one 399 
foot above the adjacent grade; 400 
 401 
    5. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, or other opening 402 
coverings or devices, provided they permit the automatic flow of floodwaters in both 403 
directions. 404 
 405 
    6. Foundation enclosures: 406 
 407 

Page 87 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   11 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

     a. Made of vinyl or other flexible skirting are not considered an 408 
enclosure for regulatory purposes, and, therefore, does not require openings. 409 
 410 
     b. Made of masonry or wood underpinning, regardless of 411 
structural status, are considered an enclosure and therefore require openings as outlined 412 
above. 413 
 414 
  (5) Additions/improvements. 415 
 416 
   (a) Additions and/or improvements to pre-FIRM structures whereas the 417 
addition and/or improvements in combination with any interior modifications to the 418 
existing structure: 419 
 420 
    1. Are not a substantial improvement, the addition and/or 421 
improvements must be designed to minimize flood damages and must not be any more 422 
non-conforming than the existing structure. 423 
 424 
    2. Are a substantial improvement, both the existing structure and the 425 
addition and/or improvements must comply with the standards for new construction. 426 
 427 
   (b) Additions to post-FIRM structures with no modifications to the existing 428 
structure shall require only the addition to comply with the standards for new 429 
construction. 430 
 431 
   (c) Additions and/or improvements to post-FIRM structures whereas the 432 
addition and/or improvements in combination with any interior modifications to the 433 
existing structure: 434 
 435 
    1. Are not a substantial improvement, the addition and/or 436 
improvements only must comply with the standards for new construction. 437 
 438 
    2. Are a substantial improvement, both the existing structure and the 439 
addition and/or improvements must comply with the standards for new construction. 440 
 441 
   (d) Where a fire wall or independent perimeter load-bearing wall is 442 
provided between the addition and the existing building, the addition(s) shall be 443 
considered a separate building and only the addition must comply with the standards for 444 
new construction. 445 
 446 
  (6) Recreational vehicles.  Recreational vehicles placed on sites within a 447 
Special Flood Hazard Area shall either: 448 
 449 
   (a) Be on site for fewer than 180 consecutive days and be fully licensed 450 
and ready for highway use (a recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its 451 
wheels or jacking system, is attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities and 452 
has no permanently attached additions); or 453 

Page 88 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   12 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

 454 
   (b) Meet all the requirements for new construction, including anchoring 455 
and elevation requirements of § 151.383(B) and § 151.384(A) and (B)(3). 456 
 457 
  (7) Temporary non-residential structures.  Prior to the issuance of a floodplain 458 
development permit for a temporary structure, applicants must submit to the Floodplain 459 
Administrator a plan for the removal of such structure(s) in the event of a hurricane, 460 
flash flood or other type of flood warning notification.  The following information shall 461 
be submitted in writing to the Floodplain Administrator for review and written approval: 462 
 463 
   (a) A specified time period for which the temporary use will be permitted. 464 
Time specified should be minimal with total time on site not to exceed one year; 465 
 466 
   (b) The name, address, and phone number of the individual responsible for 467 
the removal of the temporary structure; 468 
 469 
   (c) The time frame prior to the event at which a structure will be removed 470 
(i. e. minimum of 72 hours before landfall of a hurricane or immediately upon flood 471 
warning notification); 472 
 473 
   (d) A copy of the contract or other suitable instrument with a trucking 474 
company to insure the availability of removal equipment when needed; and 475 
 476 
   (e) Designation, accompanied by documentation of a location outside the 477 
Special Flood Hazard Area, to which the temporary structure will be moved. 478 
 479 
  (8) Accessory structures.  When accessory structures (sheds, detached garages, 480 
etc.) are to be placed within a Special Flood Hazard Area, the following criteria shall be 481 
met: 482 
 483 
   (a) Accessory structures shall not be used for human habitation (including 484 
work, sleeping, living, cooking or restroom areas) and shall not be temperature 485 
controlled;  486 
 487 
   (b) Accessory structures shall be designed to have low flood damage 488 
potential; 489 
 490 
   (c) Accessory structures shall be constructed and placed on the building 491 
site so as to offer the minimum resistance to the flow of floodwaters; 492 
 493 
   (d) Accessory structures shall be firmly anchored in accordance with this 494 
subchapter or by bolting the building to a concrete slab or by over the top ties.  When 495 
bolting to a concrete slab, one-half inch bolts six feet on center with a minimum of two 496 
per side shall be required.  If over the top ties are used a minimum of two ties with a 497 
force adequate to secure the building is required; and 498 
 499 

Page 89 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   13 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

   (e) All service facilities such as electrical and heating equipment shall be 500 
installed in accordance with § 151.384(A)(4); and 501 
 502 
   (f) Openings to relieve hydrostatic pressure during a flood shall be 503 
provided below regulatory flood protection elevation in conformance with § 504 
151.384(B)(4)(a). 505 
 506 
   (g) An accessory structure with a footprint less than 150 square feet that 507 
satisfies the criteria outlined above, does not require an elevation or floodproofing 508 
certificate.  Elevation or floodproofing certifications are required for all other accessory 509 
structures in accordance with §151.383(B)(3). 510 
 511 
                  (e)  Accessory structures over 150 square feet and up to 1000 square feet or 512 
less with a value of less than $15K may be permitted below the base flood elevation as 513 
defined in §151.600 (Definitions) provided they satisfy the criteria outlined above. 514 
 515 
                  (f) Accessory structures greater than 1000 square feet shall meet the elevation 516 
requirements as defined in §151.600 (Definitions) or flood proofing requirements set for 517 
the in §151.383(B)(3). 518 
 519 
Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this 3rd day of 520 
August, 2015. 521 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs made a motion to re-approve Ordinance No. 2015-522 
06-03 with additional amendments.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman 523 
Michael McLain, Vice Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Tom 524 
White, Garry Meiggs and Clayton Riggs voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; 525 
no Commissioners absent; and no Commissioner not voting.  526 

 527 
 528 
Item 5.D - Personnel Policy Changes 529 
 530 
Human Resources Specialist Stephanie Jackson presented the recommended 531 
changes to the Camden County Personnel Policy as proposed by the Personnel 532 
Committee Meeting which was held on October 8th. Committee members 533 
consisted of Vice Chairman Duckwall, Commissioner Riggs, HR Specialist 534 
Stephanie Jackson and the County Manager Mike Renshaw.  535 
 536 
The County Attorney John Morrison has reviewed and approves of the 537 
recommended revisions. 538 
 539 

(a) The changes to Article VI. Conditions of Employment as proposed to 540 
specify the spouse, sibling, child or parent. 541 

Page 90 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   14 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

 542 
(b) The changes to Article XI. Grievance Procedure and Adverse Action 543 

Appeal to add an appeal process after County Manager decision and to 544 
add a step for department heads to follow. 545 

After much discussion the board directed staff to amend the language of the 546 
proposed changes to Article XI Grievance Procedure and Adverse Action and 547 
present both Articles VI and XI to the board in a future meeting for approval.   548 
 549 

 550 
Board Appointments 551 
 552 
Item 6.A - Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee 553 
 554 
Staff has received a request to reappoint Ruth White and Jasmine White to the 555 
following two members to serve the Camden County Community Advisory 556 
Committee for an additional 2 year term. 557 
 558 
Commissioner Tom White made a motion to reappoint re-appoint Ruth White 559 
and Jasmine White to serve the Camden County Adult Care Home Community 560 
Advisory Committee for an additional 2 year term to expire 10/28/2017. The 561 
motion passed 5-0 with Chairman Michael McLain, Vice Chairwoman Sandra 562 
Duckwall, Commissioners Tom White, Garry Meiggs and Clayton Riggs voting 563 
aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioners absent; and no 564 
Commissioner not voting.  565 
 566 

 567 
Consent Agenda 568 
 569 
Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall made a motion to amend the Consent Agenda by 570 
removing Item 7.G - Set Public Hearing – Special Use Permit Preliminary Plat 571 
Green Meadows – 9 lot Major Subdivision (UDO 2013-10-01) from the Consent 572 
Agenda and place in Other Business as Item 11.A - Set Public Hearing – Special 573 
Use Permit Preliminary Plat Green Meadows – 9 lot Major Subdivision (UDO 574 
2013-10-01)  for discussion.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice 575 
Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom 576 
White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no 577 
Commissioner not voting. 578 
 579 

Page 91 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   15 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to approve the consent agenda as 580 
amended.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman Michael McLain, Vice 581 
Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Tom White, Garry Meiggs and 582 
Clayton Riggs voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioners absent; 583 
and no Commissioner not voting.  584 
 585 
 586 
Item 7.A - Draft Minutes – September 8th, 2015 587 
 588 
A copy of the draft minutes are kept on file in the Clerk’s office. 589 

 590 
 591 
Item 7.B - Budget Amendments – BA007 592 
 593 
This Budget Amendment is made to remit 10% retainage and final invoice for 594 
2015 Revaluation. 595 
 596 

ACCT NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF ACCT INCREASE DECREASE 

    
Expenses    
704200-545000 Contracted Services $36,748.13  
704200-599900 Fund Reserves  $36,748.13 

 597 
This will result in a decrease of $0 in the Contingency of the General Fund. 598 
 599 
Balance in Contingency $40,000.00 600 
 601 

 602 
 603 
Item 7.C - Tax Collection Report 604 
 605 

Tax Collection Report 
September 2015 

     
Day Amount Amount Name of Account Deposits 

1  507.00    507.00  
2  2,697.18    2,697.18  
3  6,394.05   $1,428.68 -Refund  6,394.05  
4  1,904.94   $0.62 -Refund  1,904.94  
8  17,752.16   $ 28.37-Refund / $.04-Over  17,752.16  
9  26,979.09   $76.99 -Refund  26,979.09  

10  243.00     
 26,423.21  14,108.61  40,531.82  

Page 92 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   16 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

11  15,634.76  29,648.46    
 14,126.15    59,409.37  

14  15,018.24  19,398.93    
 30,099.12  38,731.54    
 9,701.21   $10.00-Short  112,949.04  

15  16,143.27  21,252.75   
 10,437.67   $417.32-Refund/$1.00 -Short  47,833.69  

16  17,785.94  19,084.14   
 21,702.42    58,572.50  

17  16,293.44  26,519.06  42,812.50  
18  34,175.39  21,588.04 $2.27 -Refund  55,763.43  
21  22,516.56  40,723.75   

 33,800.70   $0.36 -Refund  97,041.01  
22  28,736.60  6,462.48 $267.00 -Refund  35,199.08  
23  28,247.95  9,827.84   38,075.79  
24  30,965.53  8,140.34   39,105.87  
25  1,783.50     

 25,930.35  6,367.73   32,298.08  
28  24,446.92  20,916.08    

 15,336.41    60,699.41  
29  12,733.64    12,733.64  
30  18,009.90  7,817.37  25,827.27  

 290.37     
 6,059.97    6,059.97  
     
     
 $532,876.64 $290,587.12  $821,146.89 
    $823,463.76 
 $823,463.76    
     
 -$2,221.61  Refund   
 -$0.04 Over   
 $11.00 Shortage   
 0.00    
 $821,253.11    

 606 

 607 
 608 
Item 7.D - Tax Refunds, Pickups, & Releases 609 
 610 

Refunds Remit To Reference 
Drawer/Transaction 

Info 

$113.64 BUCCHINO,MATTHEW 
2015 R 01-7997-00-85-

1120.0000 
20150915 1 220292 

$267.00 
FIDELITY NATIONAL TITLE 

AGENCY 

2015 R 01-7080-00-73-

3233.0000 
20150922 1 220704 

$303.61 ROBERTSON,PAULINE 
2015 R 01-7090-00-39-

4356.0000 
20150915 1 220396 

$701.99 WFG LENDER SERVICES, LLC 
2015 R 03-8953-04-50-

5032.0000 
20151015 1 221478 

Page 93 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   17 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

$1,386.24 Total Refunds   

 611 
NAME REASON TYPE NO. 

Tracy Swain 
$3,422.67 

Roil back tax 

Pick/Up-18119 

Multiple-2012-2015 

Jesse Grumbles 
$136.55 

Mobile home removed 

Pick/Up-18137 

R-90418-15 

Danson's Grant 

Homeowners' Association 

$240.49 

Adjustment- value 

correction as per 

Bob of Pearson Appraisal 

Pick/Up-18118 

R-90040-15 

Danson's Grant 

Homeowners' 

Asso.ciation 

$132.64 

Adjustment- value 

correction as 

Bob of Pearson Appraisal 

Pick/Up-18117 

R-90041-15 

Gilbert Wayne Overton 
$192.66 

Turned plates 

Pick/Up-18101 

R-93303-15 

Clarence M. Richardson, 

Jr. 

$151.19 

Adjustment - value 

correction 

Pick/Up-18100 

R-88879-15 

 612 
 613 

 614 
Item 7.E - Tax Authorization to Collect (December Renewals) 615 
 616 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 617 
COUNTY OF CAMDEN 618 
 619 
TO: The Tax Administrator of Camden County December Ren. Due 01/15/16 620 
(NEW SYSTEM) 621 
 622 
You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the taxes set 623 
forth in the tax records filed in the office of the Tax Administrator and in the tax 624 
receipts herewith delivered to you, in the amounts and from the taxpayers 625 
likewise therein set forth. Such taxes are hereby declared to be a first lien upon 626 
personal property of the respective taxpayers in the County of Camden, and this 627 
order shall be a full and sufficient authority to direct, require, and enable you to 628 
levy on and sell personal property of such taxpayers for and on account thereof, 629 
in accordance with the law. 630 
 631 

SOUTH MILLS  COURTHOUSE  SHILOH  TOTAL 632 

Page 94 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   18 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

12,324.81   18,047.93   9,790.11   40,162.85 633 
 634 

 635 
Item 7.F - Set Public Hearing: Ordinance No. 2015-10-01 - Proposed amendments 636 
to Chapter 151 (Unified Development Ordinance) of the Camden County 637 
Code Ordinances 638 
 639 
New state law prohibits the placement of Design Standards (Article 151.069) on 640 
single family dwellings and modular homes. 641 
 642 
With the possible adoption of Camden’s Drainage Manual some of the 643 
requirements exceed those stated in the Unified Development Ordinance.  The 644 
proposed amendment’s addresses those requirements and clarifies existing 645 
language in the Unified Development Ordinance. 646 
 647 
Set public hearing for November 16, 2015. 648 

 649 
 650 
Item 7.G - Set Public Hearing – Special Use Permit Preliminary Plat Green 651 
Meadows – 9 lot Major Subdivision (UDO 2013-08-04) 652 
 653 
Removed 654 

 655 
 656 
Item 7.H - Surplus Property – Sherriff’s 657 
 658 
Sheriff’s office has two vehicles and a safe to surplus. Two vehicles are requested 659 
to be posted on Gov Deals. The safe is being requested to do an exchange for 660 
ammunition of equal value. Descriptions are attached. 661 
 662 
SHERIFF'S OFFICE 663 
Item: 2006 FORD EXPEDITION SPECIAL SERVICE VEHICLE 664 
Disposal Method:  SELL 665 
Suggested Value:  5,000 666 
Reason for surplus:  REMOVED FROM FLEET 667 
 668 
SHERIFF'S OFFICE 669 
Item: 2007 DODGE CHARGER POLICE VEHICLE 670 
Disposal Method:  SELL 671 
Suggested Value:  2,500 672 
Reason for surplus:  REMOVED FROM FLEET 673 

Page 95 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   19 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

 674 
SHERIFF'S OFFICE 675 
Item: CANNON WIDE BODY 64 GUN SAFE 676 
Disposal Method:  SELL 677 
Suggested Value:  500 678 
Reason for surplus:  NOT NEEDED 679 

 680 
 681 
Item 7.I - Surplus Property – Maintenance 682 
 683 
Fleet vehicle has been wrecked and totaled by the insurance company. Gov Deals 684 
auction is requested. 685 
 686 
MAINTENANCE OFFICE 687 
Item: 2010 CHEVY MALIBU 688 
Disposal Method:  GOV DEALS 689 
Suggested Value:  3,000 690 
Reason for surplus:  WRECKED 691 
 692 

 693 
 694 
Item 7.J - Surplus Property – Extension 695 
 696 
Extension Director requests to surplus two out of date monitors and one CPU. 697 
 698 
EXTENSION 699 
Item: DELL MONITOR AND TOWER 700 
Disposal Method:   701 
Suggested Value:   702 
Reason for surplus:  Using state leased computers 703 
 704 
EXTENSION 705 
Item: Acer Monitor 706 
Disposal Method:   707 
Suggested Value:   708 
Reason for surplus:  Using state leased computers 709 
 710 
 711 
 712 
 713 

Page 96 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   20 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

 714 

 715 
Commissioner’s Report 716 
 717 
Commissioner Garry Meiggs mentioned the following items of interest: 718 
 Albemarle Regional Health Services is moving along and he is looking 719 

forward to things to come.   720 
 721 
Chairman Michael McLain mentioned the following items of interest: 722 

 ABC Audit is included in this board packet 723 
 The Trillium board gave themselves health Insurance for life and he 724 

would like to send a resolution opposing it. 725 
 After some discussion, the consensus of the board was to get 726 

all the facts first.  727 
 The Red Cross is giving out free Smoke Detectors 728 
  Medicare open enrollment is in process. 729 

o The Senior Center and the Extension Office are certified to assist in 730 
helping people find the plan that is right for you. 731 

o IRS Scam – The IRS calls no one.   732 
 733 
Commissioner Clayton Riggs mentioned the following items of interest: 734 
 Attended the “Darkness to Light” child sex abuse training and points out 735 

that there is a link on the home page of the Camden County website for 736 
free training for everyone until the end of the year. 737 

o Commissioner Tom White urged all parents and grandparents to 738 
take the training. 739 

 740 

 741 
County Manager’s Report 742 
 743 
County Manager Mike Renshaw had the following items to report: 744 
 745 

 New Hire - Ronda Mathews was hired as a county custodian 746 
 Ms. Mathews background info; 747 
 10 yrs. in the Coast Guard as the  training manager for 748 

housekeeping  749 
 3 ½ yrs. in the Marine Corp as a police officer  750 
 3 ½ yrs. in the Jacksonville police department 751 

 Golden Leaf Foundation - Open Grant 752 

Page 97 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   21 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

o Golden Leaf Vice President, Mr. Ted Lord confirmed the proposed 753 
Core Area WWTP Project meets the scope of the Open Grant and 754 
has invited the county to submit a “Letter of Inquiry”. 755 

o The County submitted the “Letter of Inquiry” last week and hopes 756 
to hear from The Golden Leaf Foundation board in December if we 757 
have been invited to apply. 758 

o The County’s application is requesting an award of $200,000 for 759 
water and sewer infrastructure in the proposed core area WWTP.  760 

Recess Commissioner's Meeting 761 

 762 
Chairman McLain recessed the Board of Commissioner meeting to go into a 763 
meeting of the South Camden Water and Sewer District Board of Director. 764 
 765 

SOUTH CAMDEN WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 766 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 767 

 768 
SCWSD Call to Order 769 
 770 
Chairman McLain called to order the November 2nd, 2015 meeting of the South 771 
Camden Water and Sewer District Board of Directors, at 8:05 PM. 772 
 773 
SCWSD Public Comments  774 
 775 
None 776 
 777 
SCWSD Consideration of Agenda 778 
 779 
Commissioner Tom White made a motion to accept the agenda as presented. The 780 
motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 781 
Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 782 
Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not 783 
voting. 784 
 785 
 786 
SCWSD Consent Agenda 787 
 788 
Commissioner Tom White made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as 789 
presented.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra 790 

Page 98 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   22 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting 791 
aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner 792 
not voting. 793 
 794 

A. Draft Minutes – September 8th, 2015   795 
 796 

 A copy of the draft minutes is maintained in the Clerk’s office. 797 
 798 

B. SCWSD – Monthly Report 799 
 800 

Monthly Work Order Statistics Report 801 
Period: October 2015 802 

 803 
 Submitted 

Work 

Orders 

Completed 

Work 

Orders 

Percentage 

Completed 

Incomplete 

Work Orders 

Water 

Collection/Distribution 
182 182 100% 0 

Sewer 7 7 100% 0 

 804 
 Water Line: 48 805 
 Sewer Line: 12 806 
 Water & Sewer, same ticket: 6 807 
 808 
Public Works Director Notes/Comments:  Ten work orders were reviewed to 809 
insure work was completed and documented correctly. 810 
 811 
SCWSD New Business  812 
 813 

A.  South Mills Water Association Reimbursement Request 814 
 815 

Public Works Director David Credle received a call in May from Mr. Freddie 816 
O’Neil, the property owner at 1401 North Hwy 343 stating he had a water leak 817 
caused by the sewer install.  The Public works staff met at the property and after 818 
two hours of digging the leak was not found.  The owner suggested if the county 819 
would dig the trench, he would install a new line.  After getting this approved by 820 
the county manager, they dug the trench and the owner installed new water line.   821 
 822 
 823 

Page 99 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   23 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

South Mills Water association gave Mr. O’Neil a leak adjustment for the leak and 824 
has asked if the County would reimburse them for the leak.  825 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs made a motion to approve the South Mills Water 826 
Association Reimbursement Request of $218.12.  The motion passed 5-0 with 827 
Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, 828 
Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no 829 
Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 830 
 831 
SCWSD Adjourn 832 
 833 
Chairman Michael McLain asked if there were any other matters to come before 834 
the South Camden Water and Sewer District Board of Directors, hearing none, 835 
Chairman McLain adjourned the South Camden Water and Sewer District Board 836 
of Directors meeting and reconvened the Camden County Board of 837 
Commissioners Meeting at 8:17 PM. 838 
 839 

Reconvene Commissioner’s Meeting 840 

 841 
Information from Board and Staff 842 
 843 
The following items were provided to the Board for their information, and a copy 844 
of these items is maintained in the Clerk’s office. 845 
 846 

A.  FY 2014-2015 ABC Report  847 
B.  Camden Food Pantry  848 
C. Camden Sales Tax Report  849 
D. North Carolina’s September Employment Figures  850 
E.  Trillium - Gov Board Packet 10-22-15  851 
F.  Library Monthly Report - September  852 
G.  Sheriff’s Monthly Report - September  853 
H.  Register of Deeds - September  854 
I.  Albemarle RC&D Fall Newsletter  855 
 856 

Chairman Michael McLain mentions that in Item 6.C Camden Sales Tax Report 857 
there is a larger than normal sales tax collection.  858 
 859 
Finance officer Stephanie Humphries advised that she spoke with the North 860 
Carolina Department of Revenue and that it was a collection from a large sales 861 
tax audit. 862 

Page 100 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   24 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

 863 
 864 
Other Matters 865 
 866 
Item 11.A - Set Public Hearing – Special Use Permit Preliminary Plat Green 867 
Meadows – 9 lot Major Subdivision (UDO 2013-10-01). 868 
 869 
Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall would like to have a discussion about holding the 870 
public hearing on December 1st per the request heard during public comments 871 
from Christie Hall.  She calls on Planning Director Dan Porter to come forward 872 
with any legal requirements as to holding a quasi-judicial hearing. 873 
 874 
Planning Director Dan Porter comes forward with the following comments; 875 
 876 

 The case has to be heard within a reasonable amount of time 877 
 The planning board has 60 days to present it to the Board of Commissioners from 878 

the time they receive it 879 
 Once the meeting date is set, it must be advertised, post it and send notice to the 880 

property owners within 100 ft. 881 
 The hearing must be advertisement not less than 10 days or more than 25 days 882 

before the public hearing date 883 
 Many of the residents attended the planning board meeting and  884 

The County Attorney John Morrison advises the importance of understanding 885 
that this public hearing is a Quasi-Judicial hearing.  Meaning it is a legal and not 886 
a political process and whether it is popular or unpopular is totally irrelevant.  887 
The board will have to make their decision based on sworn testimony. 888 
 889 

1. Has the developer met the requirements of the Unified Development Ordinance? 890 
2. Will the development present issues of public health safety and welfare? 891 
3. Will the development devalue adjacent property? 892 

As this property has already been rezoned, it is now a legal proceeding.  893 
Therefore, it is not permissible to contact the commissioners. They must base 894 
their decision on competent evidence heard only during the hearing.  Those who 895 
oppose the development must have specific evidence that is relevant and not just 896 
an opinion based on dislike.  Certain evidence will require expert opinion. 897 
The board must keep in mind that as the citizens have rights the developer also 898 
has rights. 899 
 900 

Page 101 of 130



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   25 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015 

Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall made a motion to approve holding the Public 901 
Hearing for the Special Use Permit Preliminary Plat Green Meadows – 9 lot 902 
Major Subdivision (UDO 2013-10-01) Green Meadows on November 16th, 2015.  903 
The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 904 
Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 905 
Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not 906 
voting. 907 
 908 
 909 
Meeting Adjourned 910 
 911 
At 8:25 PM, Chairman McLain asked if there were any other matters to come 912 
before the Board of Commissioners, hearing none, and by acclamation the 913 
meeting was adjourned. 914 
 915 
 916 
   917 
 Chairman P. Michael McLain 918 
 Camden County Board of Commissioners 919 
ATTEST: 920 
 921 
 922 
  923 
Angela L. Wooten 924 
Clerk to the Board 925 

Page 102 of 130



 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
 
 
Item Number:   7.B 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
Meeting Date:   January 19, 2016 
Attachments:   2 
Submitted By: Tax Office 
 
 
 
ITEM TITLE:   Tax Refunds Pickups & Releases 
   
     
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Refunds Pickups & Releases 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Review & Approve  
 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 
M. McLain        
G. Meiggs        
S. Duckwall  
C. Riggs           
T. White   
NO MOTION   

VOTE: 
M. McLain        
G. Meiggs        
S. Duckwall  
C. Riggs      
T. White  
ABSENT           
RECUSED    

Page 103 of 130



Refunds over $100.00

Report Dale 1/4/2016 4 49 14 PM

Payee Name I Secondary Address 1 Address 2 Address 3 Refund Type Bill*
I Owner

North Carolina Vehicle Tax System

NCVTS Pending Refund report

Transaction

U

Refund Descnption Refund Create Date

Reason

Authorization Date Tax

Junsdiction

CALVERT. CALVERT. 928 S SANDY
JIMMY OLIVER SHERRI LYNN HOOK RD

JR

SHILOH.NC Proration 0028737045 BDA9447 AUTHORIZED 39623588 Refund Generated due Tag 12/21/2015 12/29/2015 3:19 37 PM 1843
27974 to proration on Bill Surrender 2

#0028737045-2015-

2015-0000-00

Submitted byffilO^^- Q^^<XUj£^\
Lisa S. Anderson, Tax Administrator Camden Coutny

Date V~5-iU>

Approved by Date

P. Michael McLain, Chairman Camden County BOard of Commissioners

Page 1 of 3

Levy Change Interest Total
Tvoe Change Change
Tax (S105 52) SO00 (S105 52)

Tax (S1 55) SO 00 (S1 55)

Refund S107.07

Page 104 of 130



NAME

James E. Nash

Winton Edward Gillespie

Simeon W. Williams

Jimmy Oliver Calvert, Jr.

Glen & Sheila Gordon

Mary M. Gordon

Ronald B. Bradshaw

Michael Carey Riggs

Stacy M. &Trisha A. Wilkins

REASON

TYPE

NO.

$467.78

Release - Equipment- caught fire in 2006
Pick/up-18514
P-3151-2007

$186.81

Adjustment - value correction
Pick/up-18520
R-92619-2015

$275.35

Adjustment - correction made as per Bob

Pick/up-18535
R-94118-2015

$107.07

Refund - Turned in plates
Pick/up-18543
28737045 - new

$1,471.08

Adjustment - correction made as per Bob

Pick/up -18545
R-90357-2015

$1,378.90
Adjustment - correction made as per Bob

Pick/up-18546
R-90363-2015

$395.88

Adjustment - correction key punch error
Pick/up-18547
R-89774-2015

$874.67

Adjustment -Roll back taxes-R-03 8972 00 39 9550
Pick/up- 18501
Multiple bills

$446.20

Adjustment - value correction

Pick/up-18508
R-91821-2015

Page 105 of 130



 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
 
 
Item Number:   7.C 
 
 Consent Agenda 
 
Meeting Date:   January 19, 2016 
Attachments:   1 
Submitted By: Tax Office 
 
ITEM TITLE:    Authorization to Collect 
     
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Authorization to Collect – March renewals 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 

Review & Approve  
 

MOTION MADE BY: 
S. Duckwall     
G. Meiggs        
M. McLain        
C. Riggs           
T. White   
NO MOTION   

VOTE: 
S. Duckwall   
G. Meiggs   
M. McLain   
C. Riggs      
T. White  
ABSENT           
RECUSED    

Page 106 of 130



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF CAMDEN

TO: The Tax Administrator of Camden County March Ren. Due 04/15/16 (NEW
SYSTEM)

You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the taxes set
forth in the tax records filed in the office of the Tax Administrator and in the tax receipts
herewith delivered to you. in the amounts and from the taxpayers likewise therein set
forth. Such taxes are hereby declared to be a first lien upon personal property of the
respective taxpayers in the County of Camden, and this order shall be a full and sufficient
authority to direct, require, and enable you to levy on and sell personal property of such
taxpayers for and on account thereof, in accordance with the law.

SOUTH MILLS COURTHOUSE SHILOH TOTAL

20,134.34 22,171.98 11,104.18 53,410.50

Witness my hand and official seal this day of

Chairman. Camden County Board of Commissioners

Attest:

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners of Camden County

This is to certify that I have received the tax receipts and duplicates for collection
in the amounts as listed herein.

ck. >S_ CXv^xjat^
ninistrator of Camden County

Page 107 of 130



 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
 
 
Item Number:   7.D 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
Meeting Date:   January 19, 2016 
Attachments:   1 
Submitted By: Sheriff 
 
ITEM TITLE:   Surplus Property  
   
     
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Request for surplus property 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Approve Request  
 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 
S. Duckwall     
G. Meiggs        
M. McLain        
C. Riggs           
T. White   
NO MOTION   

VOTE: 
S. Duckwall   
G. Meiggs   
M. McLain   
C. Riggs      
T. White  
ABSENT           
RECUSED    

Page 108 of 130



Page 109 of 130

shumphries
Stamp

shumphries
Stamp



 
 

Camden County 
 South Camden Water & Sewer District  

 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
 

Item Number 4.A 
 
 Consent Agenda 
 
Meeting Date:   1/19/2016 
Attachments:   1 (3 Pages) 
Submitted By: Angie Wooten, Clerk  
 
 
ITEM TITLE:   Draft Meeting Minutes 
 
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 

November 2, 2015 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Review & Approve 
 

MOTION MADE BY: 
S. Duckwall     
G. Meiggs        
M. McLain        
C. Riggs           
T. White   
NO MOTION   

VOTE: 
S. Duckwall   
G. Meiggs   
M. McLain   
C. Riggs      
T. White  
ABSENT           
RECUSED    

Page 110 of 130



SOUTH CAMDEN WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015  

 

 1 
SOUTH CAMDEN WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 2 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 3 
Regular Meeting  4 

November 2nd, 2015 5 
7:00 P.M. - Regular Meeting 6 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 7 
Camden, North Carolina 8 

 9 
MINUTES 10 

 11 
The South Camden Board of Directors meet during the regular meeting of the Camden 12 
County Board of Commissioners held on November 2nd, 2015 in the Historic Courtroom, 13 
Camden, North Carolina.  The following Commissioners were present: 14 
 15 

Chairman P. Michael McLain, Vice Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall, 16 
Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White; 17 

 18 
The following county staff was also in attendance: 19 
 20 

County Manager Michael Renshaw, County Attorney John Morrison and Clerk to the 21 
Board Angela L. Wooten and Public Works Director David Credle  22 

 23 
 24 

SCWSD Call to Order 25 
 26 
Chairman McLain called to order the November 2nd, 2015 meeting of the South Camden 27 
Water and Sewer District Board of Directors, at 8:05 PM. 28 
 29 
SCWSD Public Comments  30 
 31 
None 32 
 33 
SCWSD Consideration of Agenda 34 
 35 
Commissioner Tom White made a motion to accept the agenda as presented. The motion 36 
passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Garry 37 
Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no 38 
Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 39 
 40 
 41 
SCWSD Consent Agenda 42 
 43 
Commissioner Tom White made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  44 
The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 45 

Page 111 of 130



SOUTH CAMDEN WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015  

 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 46 
Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 47 
 48 

A. Draft Minutes – September 8th, 2015   49 
 50 

 A copy of the draft minutes is maintained in the Clerk’s office. 51 
 52 

B. SCWSD – Monthly Report 53 
 54 

Monthly Work Order Statistics Report 55 
Period: October 2015 56 

 57 
 Submitted 

Work Orders 
Completed 

Work Orders 
Percentage 
Completed 

Incomplete 
Work Orders 

Water 
Collection/Distribution 

182 182 100% 0 

Sewer 7 7 100% 0 
 58 
 Water Line: 48 59 
 Sewer Line: 12 60 
 Water & Sewer, same ticket: 6 61 
 62 
Public Works Director Notes/Comments:  Ten work orders were reviewed to insure 63 
work was completed and documented correctly. 64 
 65 
SCWSD New Business  66 
 67 

A.  South Mills Water Association Reimbursement Request 68 
 69 

Public Works Director David Credle received a call in May from Mr. Freddie O’Neil, the 70 
property owner at 1401 North Hwy 343 stating he had a water leak caused by the sewer 71 
install.  The Public works staff met at the property and after two hours of digging the 72 
leak was not found.  The owner suggested if the county would dig the trench, he would 73 
install a new line.  After getting this approved by the county manager, they dug the 74 
trench and the owner installed new water line.   75 
 76 
 77 
South Mills Water association gave Mr. O’Neil a leak adjustment for the leak and has 78 
asked if the County would reimburse them for the leak.  79 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs made a motion to approve the South Mills Water 80 
Association Reimbursement Request of $218.12.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman 81 
McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and 82 

Page 112 of 130



SOUTH CAMDEN WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 
Regular Meeting – November 2nd, 2015  

 

Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no 83 
Commissioner not voting. 84 
 85 
 86 
 87 
SCWSD Adjourn 88 
 89 
Chairman Michael McLain asked if there were any other matters to come before the 90 
South Camden Water and Sewer District Board of Directors, hearing none, Chairman 91 
McLain adjourned the South Camden Water and Sewer District Board of Directors 92 
meeting and reconvened the Camden County Board of Commissioners Meeting at 8:17 93 
PM. 94 
 95 
 96 
 97 
 98 
   99 
 Chairman Michael McLain 100 
 Camden County Board of Commissioners 101 
ATTEST: 102 
 103 
 104 
  105 
Angela L. Wooten 106 
Clerk to the Board 107 

Page 113 of 130



 
 

Camden County 
 South Camden Water & Sewer District  

 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
 
Item Number 4.B 
 
Meeting Date:   1/19/2016 
Attachments:   1 (1 Page) 
Submitted By: David Credle,  
 Public Works Manager 
 
ITEM TITLE:   Monthly Water & Sewer Department Update 
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Monthly Water & Sewer Department update 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Approval 
 

MOTION MADE BY: 
S. Duckwall     
G. Meiggs        
M. McLain        
C. Riggs           
T. White   
NO MOTION   

VOTE: 
S. Duckwall   
G. Meiggs   
M. McLain   
C. Riggs      
T. White  
ABSENT           
RECUSED    

Page 114 of 130



South Camden Water & Sewer Board 

Monthly Work Order Statistics Report 

Period:  December 2015 

 

 
Submitted Work 

Orders 
Completed Work 

Orders 
Percentage 
Completed 

Status of 
Uncompleted Work 

Orders 

Water 
Collection/Distribution 

68 68 100% 0 

Sewer 6 6 100% 0 

 

 Water Line Sewer Line Water & Sewer 

Locates 29 4 6 

 

 

Public Works Director Notes/Comments: 

 On 12/24 the Water Treatment Plant had a variable frequency drive fail during a thunderstorm. The utility power 
was on and off a couple of times during the storm and apparently the power surged enough to damage the VFD for 
the interstage pump on R/O train 2. A new VFD has been ordered and is scheduled to be installed /programed on 
Jan/14/2016. 
 

 10 work orders were reviewed to insure work was completed and documented correctly. 

 

Page 115 of 130



 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
 
Item Number:   10.A-F 
 
 
 INFORMATION 
 
Meeting Date:   January 19th, 2016 
Attachments:   6 
Submitted By: Various Department Heads 
 
 
ITEM TITLE:   INFORMATION 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 

A. Monthly Report – Sheriff 
B. County & Municipality Fees 
C. Monthly Report – Register of Deeds 
D. Sales Tax Revenue 
E. Hyde County Resolution  
F. Monthly Reports - EMS   
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 
M. McLain  
G. Meiggs        
M. McLain        
C. Riggs           
T. White   
NO MOTION   

VOTE: 
M. McLain  
G. Meiggs   
S. Duckwall     
C. Riggs      
T. White  
ABSENT           
RECUSED    

Page 116 of 130



Property 

Crimes

Breaking 

& 

Entering Larceny

Crimes 

Against 

Persons

Animal 

Control 

Calls Assaults Mental Commit. Drug Arrests

Current: 15-Dec 3 2 4 5 33 5 3 0

Last Month: 15-Nov 5 4 7 3 34 2 2 1

Last Year: 14-Dec 5 1 0 5 41 0 2 1

Traffic 

Offense

Other 

Arrest

Juvenile 

Arrest

Total 

Arrest Reports

Papers 

Served

Armed 

Robbery

Calls 

Answered Building Checks

Avg. Jail 

Population

122 12 0 134 168 70 0 1,570 265

164 6 0 171 215 51 0 1,458 385 0

63 9 0 73 100 106 0 717 332 0

1,570

50.6

14, 326

9876

12335

Firearms

Trainings

Date

Camden County Sheriff's Office Monthly Stats
December-16

Calls Answered:

Average:

Calls for Service 2015:

Calls for Service 2014:

Calls for Service 2013:

Page 117 of 130



@

PROGRAM: UARFEE1B

RUN DATE: 12/31/15
RUN TIME: 21:18:36

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF THE COURTS

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

COUNTY AND MUNICIPALITY FEES

FOR THE PERIOD 01/01/15 THROUGH 12/31/15
(FYE-CNTY/MUNC)

COUNTY FEES FOR: 14 0 CAMDEN CSC

DESCRIPTION

FACILITY FEES

COUNTY FEES-INTEREST

OFFICER FEES

JAIL FEES

FINES fir FORFEITURES

ACCOUNT accoun:r DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT TOTAL

22110 COUNTY FACILITY FEES - SC CRIMINAL 392.76
22120 COUNTY FACILITY FEES - SC CIVIL 144.00
22130 COUNTY FACILITY FEES - SC SPEC 106.00

22140 COUNTY FACILITY FBES - SC ESTATES 351.00
22210 COUNTY FACILITY FEES - DC CRIMINAL 16,902.03
22220 COUNTY FACILITY FEES - DC CIVIL 1,540.80
22320 COUNTY PACILITY FEES - MG CIVIL 723.60
22420 COUNTY FACILITY FEBS - APP CRIM 310.43

22410 COUNTY FACILITY FEES - INTEREST 13.27

22500 COUNTY OFFICER FEES 7,752.48
22515 CIVIL PROC FEE - COUNTY 1,593.00

22600 COUNTY JAIL FEES 1,634.51
22620 POST-TRIAL JAIL FEES - COUNTY 1,807.45

22700 FINES -- COUNTY 48,627.01
22900 FORFEITURES - COUNTY 3,705.34

TOTAL COUNTY FEBS

Jflflfl^ 0&H>M> /**- ?*# &**&«&• /H&M#^

PAGE 1

FEE TOTAL ff I

C^DEN CO., C.S.C.
20,472.62£Y

13.27

9,345.4B

3,441.96

52,332.35

35,605.68

***END***

Page 118 of 130



Page 119 of 130



Page 120 of 130



Finance 6-Jan-16
2015-2016
SALES TAX - REVENUE COLLECTION REPORT

July* August September October November December January February March April May June Totals Budgeted
Art. 39 $47,938 $115,595 $30,156 $49,667 $36,908 $280,264 $565,000
Art. 40 $22,581 $38,611 $16,843 $22,402 $18,396 $118,833 $425,000
Art. 42 $11,220 $24,478 $7,847 $11,471 $9,023 $64,039 $125,000
Art. 44 $2 $20,549 $2 $6 $0 $20,560
Totals $81,741 $199,233 $54,847 $83,547 $64,328 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $483,696
Total Budgeted $1,115,000

SALES TAX REVENUE- SCHOOL CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

July* August September October November December January February March April May June Totals Budgeted
Art. 40 $17,256 $16,547 $15,215 $15,586 $14,584 $79,187 $160,000
Art. 42 $34,511 $36,716 $30,430 $31,171 $29,167 $161,996 $190,000
Totals $51,767 $53,264 $45,645 $46,757 $43,751 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $241,183
Total Budgeted $350,000

Grand $133,508 $252,497 $100,492 $130,304 $108,079 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $724,879 $1,465,000

*Amended

2014-2015
SALES TAX - REVENUE COLLECTION REPORT

July August September October November December January February March April May June Totals Budgeted
Art. 39 $44,058 $42,111 $22,402 $52,255 $54,114 $41,782 $53,444 $43,525 $43,288 $45,900 $44,030 $42,237 $529,146 $525,000
Art. 40 $38,988 $34,814 $35,370 $33,479 $35,220 $34,201 $41,563 $31,886 $30,973 $32,613 $34,850 $37,517 $421,476 $360,000
Art. 42 $10,488 $9,928 $6,185 $12,046 $12,308 $9,971 $12,478 $10,325 $10,146 $10,713 $10,240 $10,172 $125,000 $125,000
Art. 44 $53 $2 $2 $3 -$3 $0 $0 -$11 $36 -$11 $0 $0 $71
Totals $93,587 $86,855 $63,959 $97,783 $101,639 $85,954 $107,484 $85,725 $84,444 $89,214 $89,121 $89,927 $1,075,692
Total Budgeted $1,010,000

SALES TAX REVENUE- SCHOOL CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

July August September October November December January February March April May June Totals Budgeted
Art. 40 $16,709 $14,920 $15,158 $14,348 $15,094 $14,658 $17,813 $13,666 $13,274 $13,977 $14,936 $16,079 $180,631 $150,000
Art. 42 $15,732 $14,892 $9,278 $18,069 $18,462 $14,957 $18,717 $15,488 $15,220 $16,069 $15,360 $15,257 $187,501 $175,000
Totals $32,441 $29,812 $24,436 $32,417 $33,556 $29,615 $36,529 $29,153 $28,494 $30,046 $30,296 $31,336 $368,132
Total Budgeted $325,000

Grand $126,029 $116,668 $88,395 $130,200 $135,196 $115,569 $144,014 $114,879 $112,938 $119,260 $119,417 $121,263 $1,443,824 $1,335,000

Notes: 8-2015 includes a lump sum payment for an audit creating a higher than usual sales tax payment.

Page 121 of 130



Page 122 of 130



Page 123 of 130



Pasquotank-Camden EMS Camden Response Times - December 2015
Times measured arefrom 0700 to 2100 when at leastone ambulance isstationed /n Camden

Call Date Location En Route On Scene Response Time
12/2/2015 101 Rosabelle Ct 15:16 15:21 0:05

109 Sunset Ave 17:14 17:25 0:11
150 Texas Rd 17:25 17:43 0:18

12/3/2015 916 Sandy Hook Rd 13:15 13:29 0:14
209 Billets Bridge Rd 17:22 17:28 0:06

12/4/2015 202 S Elm St 7:49 7:53 0:04
107 Glen br 11:57 12:06 0:09

916 Sandy Hook Rd 12:56 13:11 0:15
12/5/2015 784 Sandy Hook Rd 7:20 7:37 0:17
12/6/2015 112 Aaron Dr 9:58 10:06 0:08

597 Sandy Hook Rd 11:16 11:29 0:13
100 Culpepper Rd 11:26 11:28 0:02

137 Country Meadows Dr 18:33 18:45 0:12
12/7/2015 467 Sandy Hook Rd 12:36 12:52 0:16

421 Neck Rd 20:56 21:09 0:13

12/8/2015 175 N 343 Hwy 14:01 14:03 0:02
110 Wood rows Dr 18:53 18:58 0:05

12/9/2015 1049 N 343 Hwy 17:26 17:33 0:07
3O0BridgeCt 17:34 17:37 0:03

140 waiston Ln 18:57 19:04 0:07
12/10/2015 1313 § 343 Hwy 17:50 18:00 0:10
12/11/2015 214 Horseshoe Rd 17:27 17:33 0:06
12/12/2015 237 Keeter Barn Rd 15:12 15:17 0:05
12/13/2015 720 N 343 Hwy 17:09 17:14 0:05

214 Riverview Ave 17:27 17:39 0:12
Sharon Church/Keeter Barn Rds 19:49 20:07 0:18

110 Smith Drive 19:55 19:59 0:04
12/14/2015 105 Canal St 11:16 11:25 0:09

117 Morristtes Rd 11:16 11:25 0:09
12/15/2015" 274 Belcross Rd 13:03 13:06 0:03

749 Sandy Hook Rd 13:38 13:47 0:09
12/17/2015 Pierce Ave/Main St 7:21 7:25 0:04
12/18/2015 131 Milltown Rd 12:47 12:56 0:09
12/20/2015 990 N 343 Hwy 7:17 7:23 0:06
12/21/2015 154 Sharon Church Rd 11:57 12:00 0:03

W US 158 Hwy/S 343 Hwy 18:47 18:51 0:04
12/22/2UT5 137 Country Meadows Dr 9:21 9:31 0:10
12/23/2015 300 Bridge Ct 8:54 8:59 0:05

2352 US 17 Hwy 12:41 12:44 0:03
12/24/2015 617 Trotman Rd 9:51 10:06 0:15

114 Windy Heights Dr 14:39 14:48 0:09
12/25/2015 105 Azalea Dr 7:05 7:14 0:09
12/26/2015 441 E US 158 Hwy 10:30 10:36 0:06

916 Sandy Hook Rd 11:31 11:44 0:13

108 Mercer Dr 14:29 14:38 0:09
129 Chamberlain Rd 14:35 14:45 0:10

406 Ivy Neck Rd 14:42 14:48 0:06
12/28/2015 114 Windy Heights Dr 10:11 10:22 0:11
12/31/2015 209 Billets Bridge Rd 11:34 11:42 0:08

287 E US 158 Hwy 12:18 12:20 0:02

112 Wesley Rd 12:29 12:50 0:21
132 Raymons Creek Rd 13:36 13:52 0:16

Camden Average Response Times 0:08

Page 124 of 130



Emergency Medical Services Board
Agenda

January 13, 2016

• Approval ofMinutes

• EMS Nurse Liaison's Report

• Rescue Squad Report

• Medical Director's Report

• County Manager's Report
o Pasquotank County
o Camden County

• EMS Department Report

• New Business

• Closed Session

• Adjournment

Page 125 of 130



EMS Board Minutes

December 9, 2015

The Pasquotank-Camden Emergency Medical Services Board meeting was held on Wednesday,

December 9, 2015, at the Pasquotank-Camden EMS Administrative Building.

Mr. Chris Ayers called the meeting to order at 2:02 p.m.

Members Present:

Frankie Meads

Garry Meiggs

Tom White

Chris Ayers

Members Absent:

Jeff Dixon

Sue Meads (Excused)

Mike Straka or Sam Furia (Excused)

Others Present:

Michael Renshaw

Rodney Bunch

Jerry Newell

Nettie Marshall

Deborah Holland

Kelley Schweers

Jack Boyce

Page 126 of 130



The minutes from the November meeting were reviewed. Mr. Tom White made a motion to

accept the minutes. Mr. Garry Meiggs seconded the motion. The motion carried.

Sentara Albemarle Medical Center:

• Ms. Kelley Schweers provided handouts regarding stats for EMS call volume, recent

initiatives, nursing updates, hospital initiatives, and patient experiences.

• CCNC has pulled out their contract with Trillium and ECU for mental health services and

gave the hospital less than a month's notice to find an alternative.

• Ms. Schweers stated that CCNC still provides some services so they may be renewing a

contract directly with CCNC but a decision has not yet been made.

• Ms. Schweers provided a handout regarding stroke screening as attached.

• In regards to safety, Ms. Schweers stated that there is a new protocol called "Phase

Two" that helps employees be aware that there is a situation going on in or around the

hospital and prevents them from going into or being a part of that situation.

Rescue Squad:

• Mr. Chris Ayers stated that they will be starting a new EMT class.

• New people have applied to be observers on the squad.

Medical Director:

• None

County Managers:

• None

EMS Department:

• Mr. JerryNewell provided the Financial Report along with the Revenue/Expenditure
report. Overall thisyear, call volume appearsto be up a total average of about 6% from
last year.

• Mr. Newell stated that call volume for November of 2015 is 14.5% above the call volume

of November 2014.

• Mr. Jack Boyce and Mr. Jerry Newell demonstrated how the new LUCAS Device

(automated CPR device) and McGrath Video Laryngoscope device that were purchased
with grant funding and are being used on calls in situations of cardiac arrest.

Page 127 of 130



New Business:

• None

Closed Session:

• None

With no further business to discuss, Mr. Garry Meiggs made a motion to adjourn the meeting.

Mr. Tom White seconded the motion. The motion carried.

The meeting was adjourned at 2:32 p.m. The next EMS Board Meeting is scheduled for

Wednesday January 13, 2016 at 2:00 p.m. in the conference room of the EMS Administrative

Building.

Page 128 of 130



IMonthly Report
for

IDecember 2015

Ambulance Responses: MTD MTD YTD YTD

2015-2016 2014-2015 2015-2016 2014-2015

Total Responses 986 1101 5926 5754

Camden County 68 78 394 353

Blackwater 0 0 0 0

Pasquotank County 698 819 4279 4254

Albemarle Hospital 220 204 1253 1147

Advanced Life Support 296 269 1850 1591

Basic Life Support 456 607 2734 2967 Emergency
Treatment/No Tx 3 1 35 24 Transports

Patient Refusal 97 115 617 568 89

Cancelled Enroute 54 43 283 216

Standby-Event 4 3 40 40 Non-Emergency
Standby-Helo 0 0 0 0 Transports

Standby-Fire 12 11 58 49 290

Mutual Aid 0 0 4 4

Miscellaneous 64

986

52

1101

305

5926

295

5754

Accounts Receivable: MTD YTD LYYTD

A/R Beginning Balance $1,838,483.87 +

Patient Billings $ 431,266.30 + $ 2,561,111.50 $ 2,363,603.00
Refunds $ 1,670.01 + $ 13,336.34 $ 11,102.39

Patient Credits $ 258,092.35 - $ 1,459,229.77 $ 1,344,692.92

Ins. Contract Adj. $ 126,940.14 - $ 734,902.41 $ 647,408.61
Write Offs $ 16,433.53 - $ 173,286.67 $ 309,526.62

Late PCR's +

Adjustment $ 2.628.73 +

A/R Ending Balance $1,872,582.89 LYMTD $ 1,724,343.80

Deposits to Finance Office $ 172,565.25 + $ 156,877.31

Recovery from Bad Debt $ 56.81 -

Misc. Revenue $ 80.00 -

A/R Payment to Finance $ 85,663.91 + Notes:

Adjustment Added $ -
+ Mileage, ins adj

Adjustment Subtracted -

Total $ 258,092.35

Page 129 of 130



Pasquotank-Camden EMS FY 2016 Projections

Month FY 2016 Call Volume FY 2016 Collections FY 2016 Expenditures

July 1019 $202,625 $520,509

August 1065 $235,353 $355,308

September 942 $285,146 $445,030

October 935 $253,499 $365,071

November 979 $224,514 $426,222

December 986 $255,614 $333,128

January

February

March

April

May

June

Encumbrances $44,458

FY 2015 Actual Totals 5926 $1,456,751 $2,489,726

FY 2015 Projections 10080 $2,730,600 $4,339,450

%ofprojections 59% 53% 57%

Page 130 of 130


	Presentations
	Agriculture Extension Agent
	COA Brand Presentation
	Mid-Year Budget Review

	Old Business
	Playground Equipment Design
	Saturday Night Open Gym Program Restructuring
	Camden Youth Football Seeking Recognized Status
	911 Central Communications Drive Testing and Assessment

	NEW BUSINESS
	Monthly Tax Report
	Library Logo
	Library's Extended Hours
	Alternative Sports Fields

	BOARD APPOINTMENTS
	CONSENT AGENDA
	Draft Minutes
	Tax Refunds Pickups & Releases
	Authorization to Collect

	SCWSD
	Draft Meeting Minutes
	Monthly Report

	INFORMATION
	Monthly Report – Sheriff
	County & Municipality Fees
	Monthly Report – Register of Deeds
	Sales Tax Revenue
	Hyde County Resolution
	Monthly Reports - EMS




